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Report of the Directors

The Directorderewith presettheir report to the shareholders together with the financial statements for
theyearended 31 December 201

Directorsd responsibility statement

The Bankds edponsidedar the psepasatior and fair presentation of the financial statements
comprising the statement of financial position at 31 Decemb@érsta@menof profit or loss and

other comprehensive incontbe statement of changes in equiigtemenof cash flowdor the year

then ended, and the notes to the financial statements, which include a summary of significant accounting
policies and other explanatory notes, in accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards
(IFRS), and in the maer required by the New Financial Institutions Act (FIA) of 1999 and the
Prudential Regulations of the Central Bank of Liberia (@8d)fo such internal control as the
Directors determine is necessary to enable the preparation of financial sthineetsrée from

material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

TheDi rect ors have made an assessment of the bank?©o
reason to believe the business will not be a going concern in the year ahead.

Results

The results for the year and the state of the ba

Approval of the financial statements

The financial statements of the Bank were approved by the Bl of Di r e20Bor s on ¢€ééé

Secrdary
The Secretary of the Board is Ms. Gloria Y. Menjor, General Manager/Deputy Chief Executive Officer
(DCEO).
By Order of the H'txrd Y \
’fl' "“‘ AA". G / ' .‘.- ;,"’) _/// J 1 a/MA("
Directbr J / Director g
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| NDEPENDENT AUDI TORGOG € info@bakertillyliberia.com

www.bakertillyliberia.com

To: The Boad of Director and Shareholders
The Liberian Bank for Development & Investment (LBDI)

Report on the Audit of the Financial Statements
Opinion

We have audited the financial statements of The Liberian Bank for Development & Investment (LBDI)
(the Bank)which comprise the statement of financial position as at December 31, 2017, the statement
of profit and loss and other comprehensive income, statement of changes in equity and statement of
cash flows for the year then ended, and notes to the finaateialests, including a summary of
significant accounting policies.

In our opinion, the accompanying financial statements present fairly, in all material respects the financial
position of the Bank as at December 31, 2017, and (of) its financial peefamdats cash flows for

the year then ended in accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRSs) and the
requirements of the New Financial Institutions Act of 1999.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with IntenahtiStandards on Auditing (ISAs). Our

responsibilities wunder those standards are furt
Audit of the Financial Statements section of our report. We are independent of the Bank in accordance
with the Iner nat i onal Et hics Standards Board for Acc

Accountants (IESBA Code) together with the ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit of the
financial statements in the Republic of Liberia, and we have aulfiltgter ethical responsibilities in
accordance with these requirements and the IESBA Code. We believe that the audit evidence we have
obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

Key Audit Matters
Key audit matters areofe matters that, in our professional judgment, were of most significance in our
audit of the financial statements of the current period. These matters were addressed in the context of

our audit of the financial statements as a whole, and in formingniam dgereon, and we do not
provide a separate opinion on these matters.

Page |3



-

BAKER TILLY
LIBERIA

Liberian Bank for Development & Investment (LBDI)

Audi torsd Report and Fi

I ndependent
For the year ended Decembér 31, 201

nan

Key audit matter(s)

How matter was addressed in our audit

Impairment of loans and advances to custom¢

The assumptions t ha
determination of collegé and specifig
impairment are subjective and involve
significant amount of judgment in t

determination of loan asset classification as
as estimation of the timing and certainty of fu
cash flows.

Management uses a mix of objective critedia
judgment in the determination of loan as
classification. This classification, which
predominantly subjective because

management 6s extensi
whether loan assets are tested for impairf
specifically or collectively.

For loan asset assessed individually f
impairment, Management employs signifi
judgment and assumptions in estimating
timing and certainty of cash flows as well ag
future value(s) of collateral(s) pledged againg
asset Impairment loss Banot been recognize
on a significant number of classified loans dy

management ds esti mat
values.
Unclassified loans have been tested

impairment on a portfolio basis. Management
made significant assumptions in estimatiag
historical loss ratio and emergence period us
the impairment model for the determination
collective impairment.

See Note 3.15 to the financial statements
further information.

We assessed the design and implementati
well as the opdiag effectiveness of contro
over t he Bankds pr
classification of loan asseWe selected hig
value loans which account for a signifi
percentage of t he Ba
purpose of this test.

Our approach was to pem extensive
procedures on manage
the determination of loan asset classification
document ed managemenrn
used and assessed the validity of judgment c
to underlying supporting documents.
challenged manage:t
judgments/assumptions used in determinatio
loan asset class for low value customer acc
with unauthorized overdrafts.

We performed substantive tesff details in
assessing management
and certainty of casloWs. For a sample of hig
value loan assets, we challenged managg
determination of collateral values, testing the
underlying supporting information such as,Ii¢
loan contracts and other relevant informal
whi ch wer e used ninatiorm
We performed reomputatios on specific
impairmerg, based on our review of the timif
of future cash flows.

We assessed managem
computational approach used in the estimatig
historical loss ratio by comparing this w
information available and methods used in
periods. Based on our extensive understandi
the industry and the Bank, weassessed th
emergence period used by the bank

performed a reomputation of collectivg
impairment.

Revenue recognition
We performed tests on the operat

The amount of revenue recognized in the yeg
interest income and fee and commission inc
is dependent on the approprig
assessment/classification of loan assets ar
appropriate fee amortization schedule. As
classification of overdraft fac#gi is complex
significant judgment is applied in determining

asset class of these facilities. The determinati

effectiveness of controls relating to loan a
classification by testing the classification (¢
sample of high W loan assets from the bank
application to underlying supporting docume
obtained from the credit departmemredit
report, credit recommendation on classifica
and loan portfolio). We performed substan
tess of detai on fee and commissiamcome by
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loan asset class informs the appropriatene{ assessing the amortization schedule

accounting treatment of related income.

In our view, revenue recognition is significan
our audit as the Bank might inappropria
recognize interest income on loan and over
facilities or use aggressive methods for fee
commission income amortization and this wq
usually lead to revenue and profit beg
recognized too early.

Management determination of interest incg
relies extensively

information system. A malfunctioning of t
banking application, inappropriate input of ¢
and/or lack of timely update of data could lea
extensive and long runginmisstatement o

information held from prior periods, testing Ig
asset period to underlying supporting informal
(customer credit files) and performing
computation of fee and commission income.

We performed subsifive analytical procedurt
on various income streams, assessing mon
month movements with observed movement

prior periods, corroboration from oth¢
supporting information and obtainir
management 0s comme s

exceeddour establishedkpectation

We performed substantive analytical proceo
by benchmarking the

to the industry average on an annual basis, n
exceptions and obtaining relevant corroborat
from managementVe also tested the accuraty

revenue. interest computations performed by
computer information system.
See Notes 2.5 and 2.6 to the financial staten

for further information.

Responsibilities of Management and Those Charged with Governance for the Financial
Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the finanuésitsstist
accordance with IFRSs, the requirements of the New Financial Institutions Act (FIA) of 1999 and the
Prudential Regulations of the Central Bank of Liberia (CBL) and for such internal control as
management determines is necessary to enable #hatjgrepf financial statements that are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

I n preparing the financi al statement s, manage me
continue as a going concern, disclosing, asadyplimatters related to going concern and using the

going concern basis of accounting unless management either intends to liquidate the Bank or to cease
operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so.

f overseei the Bankos

Those charged with governance are regpbnsi or

ng
Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole are
free from material nist at e ment , whet her due to fraud or err
includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an
audit conducted in accordance with ISAs will always detect a mastéément when it exists.
Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the
aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the
basis of these financiatsiments.

As part of an audit in accordance with ISAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain
professional skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statestieeitsjue to fraud
or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that
is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material
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misstatement resulting frainaud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve
collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order tcaddgigmocedures

that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the
effectiveness of the Banko6s internal control

Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonablenessgésiic@iatn
and related disclosures made by management.

Conclude on the appropriateness of management ds
based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or
condt i ons t hat may cast significant doubt on the
conclude that a materi al uncertainty exists, we
the related disclosures in the financial statementsuch disclosures are inadequate, to modify our
opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audi
report. However, future events or conditions may cause the Bank to cease to continue as a going
concern

Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements, including the
disclosures, and whether the financial statements represent the underlying transactions and events in a
manner that achieves fair presentation.

We commurmate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned
scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in
internal control that we identify during our audit.

We also providhose charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with relevant
ethical requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and other
matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independtndecranapplicable, related
safeguards.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

In accordance with the requirements of Sectidifédlof the New Financial Institutions Act of 1999,
we report that we received satisfactory explanations/infomrfratin the officers and /or agents of the
bank, regarding the Banko6s compliance with the |

W A .
a(ﬁ.-h, g'fﬁ' Lyl n .e’.;.r?w"z‘.fp-“
(Certified Public Accountants)

20 March, 2018

Monrovia
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Statement of Profit or Loss and Other Comprehensive Income
In Liberian dollars Note 31-Dec-2017 31Dec-2016
Interest income 9 742,108,53€ 675,122,241
Interest expense 10 190,604,39¢€ 157,080,35¢
Net interest income 551,504,13¢ 518,041,88¢
Loan impairment charges 37,283,523 50589,002
Net interest income after loan impairment charges 514,220,61¢ 467,452,884
Fee and commission income 11 514,665,492 450,069,424
Fee and commission expense - -
Net interest and commission on Loans & Advance 1,028,886,10¢ 917,522,30€
Other operating income 12 378,584,56C 199,796,664
Total income for the period 1,407,470,66¢ 1,117,318,97.
Personnel expenses 13 549,384,807 419,916,801
General and administrative expenses 14 570,658,711 430,323,091
Operating lease expenses 43,296,603 32,009,308
Other operating expenses 15 130,593,863 64,584,387
Total operating expenditure for the period 1,293,933,97¢ 946,833,587

Profit for the period

113,536,68¢

170,485,38¢<

Profit attributable to:
Equity holders of the entity
Profit for the period from continuing operations

113,536,68¢

170,485,38¢

Earnings per share for the profit/loss from contining

operations attributable to the equity holders of the bank

during the period (expressed in Liberian dollars per share):

- Basic
- Diluted

167.48
167.48

251.48
251.48

The notes on pagé2to 66are integral parts of these financial statements
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I ndependent Auditors®é& Report and Finan BAKER TILLY
For the year ended Decembér 31, 201 LIBERIA
Statement of Financial Position
In Liberian dollars Note 31Dec-2017 31Dec-2016
Assets
Cash and cash equivalents 16 1,956,788,07( 2,009,53998
Investments 17 1,674,520,02( 1,608,209,67:
Loans and Advances to Customers 18 11,014,535,16. 8,650,363,25:
Other assets 19 5,640,202,04* 3,576,792,62"
Investment property 20 745,500,00C 745,500,00C
Intangible assets 21 164,451,457 59,643,489
Property and equipment 22 1,320,543,29" 998,387,591

Total assets 22,516,540,05: 17,648,436,42¢

Liabilities

Deposits from Cuemers 23 13,790,458,83: 11,424,378,43:
Due to Central Bank & EBID 24 1,818,055,77: 1,241,573,44¢
Other liabilities 25 4,603,496,56" 2,853,675,63¢

Total liabilities 20,212,011,17 15,523,627,51

Equity

Share capital 26 388,228,26¢ 388,228,26¢
Share Premium 26 140,958,544 140,958,544
Statutory Reserves 27a 394,523,91: 366,139,741
Revaluation Surplus 27b 450,695,941 450,695,941
Treasury stock (5,254,643) (5,254,643)
Translation Adjustments 28b 616,107,031 325,311,34¢
Retained earnings / (Accumulated losses) 319,269,82¢ 458,729,71¢€
Total equity attributable to the owners of the bank 2,304,528,881 2,124,808,91:

Total liabilities and equity 17,648,436,42!

\ S5 7773
" W’“\, % /] ‘ D IINARTD
' - Clpaln LY [ AZN0D)

— /_lnhn B.S. Davies 111 Dr. James S.P. Cox )'r/)('r

President/Chief Executive Officer Director

The notes on page2tb 66are integral parts of these financial statements
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Il ndependent Auditorsd Report and Finan BAKER TILLY
For the year ended Decembér 31, 201 LIBERIA
Statement of Cash Flows
In Liberian dollars 31Dec-2017 31Dec-2016
Cash flows from operating activities
Profit for the period 113,536,68¢ 170,485,38¢E
Adjustments for:
Prior year adjustment (139,750,757 -
Depreciation ahamortization 91,976,364 94,416,705
Translation differences 290,795,68¢ 8,142,302
356,557,982 273,044,392

Changes in:
Loans and advances to customers

Other assets

(2,364,171,911

(2,063,409,417

(1,837,964,039

159,229,01¢€

Deposits from customers 2,366,080,40: 972,608,36¢
Other liabilities 1,745,820,93( 1,149,76388¢
Net cash from/(used in) operating activities 40,877,985 716,681,63(
Cash flows from investing activities

Purchase of property & equipment and Intangible (206,567,858 (164,671,300
Investments (66,310,349 (151,228,949

Adjustments (retained earning & fixed assets)

(312,372,179

(433,179,173

Net cash from/(used in) investing activities (585,250,387 (749,079,331)
Cash flows from financing activities

Due to Central B&n& EBID 576,482,324 (27,984,345)
Dividend payable (84,861,650, 69,597,500
Net cash from/(used in) financing activities 491,980,674 (97,581,845)

Net (decrease) / increase in cash and cash
equivalents

Cash and cash equivalent at beginning of period

(52,751,728)

2,009,539, 79¢

(129,979,546)

2,139,519,34«

Cash and cash equivalent at end of period

1,956,788,07(

2,009,539,79¢

The notes on pagé2 b 66are integral parts of these financial statements
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Statement of changes in equity

Share
capital

Share
Premium

Revaluation
reserves

Credit
Risk
Reserves

Statutory
reserves

Treasury
stock

Translation
Adjustments

Retained
earnings

Total

In Liberian dollars

Balance at 1 January 2016

388,228,269

140,958,544

615,619,573

392,052,257

323,518,399

(5,254,643)

458,801,263

89,764,444

2,403,688,107

Shares issued: Class B Common stock §
par value

Share premium (Paith Capital in excess
of par)

Reclassification based on CBL
Guidelines/RSD/0864/2016

(392,052,257

392,052,257

Revaluation reserves on investment
properties

(164,923,632

(164,923,632

Write back of Provision

Other adjustment (Prior year items)

(489,515,844

(81,353,522

(570,869,366

Total comprehensive income for the
period:

Profit for the period

42,621,346

127,864,039

170,485,385

Dividend payable

(69,597,500

(69,59,500)

Other comprehensive income, net of tax

Foreign currency translation difference
(USD, EURO & GBP)

356,025,926

356,025,926

Total Equity & Reserves at December

31, 2016

388,228,269

140,958,544

450,695,941

366,139,741

(5,254,643)

325,311,345

458,729,716

2,124,808,912
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Statement of changes in equity
Credit
Share Share Revaluation Risk Statutory Treasury Translation Retained
capital Premium reserves | Reserves reserves stock | Adjustments earnings Total

In Liberian dollars
Balance at 1 January 2017 388,228,269 140,958,544 450,695,941 - | 366,139,741 (5,254,643) 325,311,345 458,729,716 2,124,808,917
Shares issued: Class B Common stock
par value
Share premium (Paith Capital in exces
of par)
Revaluation reserves on investment
properties
Other adjustment (Prior year items) (139,750,757| (139,750,757
Total comprehensive incomdor the
period:
Profit for the period 28,384,172 85,152,517 113,536,689
Dividend payable

(84,861,650) (84,861,650
Other comprehensive income, net of
tax
Foreign currency translation difference
(USD, EURO & GIP) 290,795,686 290,795,686
Total Equity & Reserves at December
31, 2017 388,228,269 140,958,544 450,695,941 - 394,523,913 (5,254,643)| 616,107,031 | 319,269,82 2,304,528,881

The notes on pagé2to 66are integral parts of these financial statements
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

1.0

Establishment and operation of LBDI

The Liberian Bank for Development and Investment (LBDI) was establishé@ ioy fe
Governmenbf Liberiain accordance with chapter 41 section 965 through fl@9Aot of the

National Legislature approved into law in the same year. The Act was amended twice, the final
amendment being on March 22, 1965, following which tltkecBamrmenced operations on
November 24 of that year.

The Bank was established to facilitate, inter alia, the following economic policies of the
Government of Liberia:

a) Develop the national economy through the free enterprise system;

b) Encourage the econamdevelopment of the country by facilitating international trade and
investment of private capital for productive purposes;

¢) Fund the establishment and expansion of small and medium enterprises;
d) Assistin the establishment, expansion and modernizgiroraté enterprise;

e) In general, provide and nurture a climate favorable to the investment of private capital for
the purpose of increasing the productive capacities of the national economy.

1.1 Activities of LBDI

2.0

2.1

2.2

LBDI was originally established to previakvelopment banking services as outlined above.
However, in 1988 the scope of operations of the Bank was expanded to include commercial
banking services. The Act establishing the Bank was amended on July 21,1988 to authorize the
expansion and the Bankrmomenced commercial banking activities on September 1, 1988 after
being licensed by the then National Bank of Liberia, the predecessor of the Central Bank of
Liberia.

Significant Accounting Policies
Basis of preparation

The financial statemenf the bank has been prepared in accordance with International
Financial Reporting Standards (IFRR®e 2013.

Currency of Accounting and Reporting

The accounting policies set out below have been applied consistently to all periods presented in
these financial statements.

2.2.1Functional and presentation currency

These financial statements are presented in Liberian dollars in accordance with the requirements
of the Financial Institution Act of 1999. However, supplementary financial stateraents
included in United States dollars because the bank operates in an economy with dual currencies.
The closing rate used to consolidate the statement of financial positictP?vd8b$JS$1 as

at December 31, 2017(2016t@250 tdJS$1) and the Statent of Profit or Loss and Other
Comprehensive Income wad14.172016: L$100.8 to US$1).
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Notes to the financial statementgcontinued)

Significant accounting policies (continued)

2.3 Basis of measurement
These financial statements have begpaped on the historiceost basis and fair valbave
been applied where necessary.

2.4 Use of estimates and judgments.

The preparation of the financial statements ifocuity with IFRS requires theirBctors to

make judgments, estimates and asgumpthat affect the application of policies and related
amounts of assets and liabilities, income and expenses. The estimates and associated assumptions
are based on historical experience and various other factors that are believed to be reasonable
underthe circumstances, the results of which form the basis of making the judgments about
carrying values of assets and liabilities that are not readily apparent from other sources. Actual
results may differ from these estimates. The estimates and undsugiptjcas are reviewed

on an ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting estimates are recognized in the period in which the
estimate is revised and in any future periods affected.

Other Accounting Policies
Foreign currency translation

(1) Functional and presentation currency
Iltems included in the financial statements are measured using the currency of the
primary economic environment in which the

(i) Transactions and balances
Foreign currency transactionsattirequire settlement, in a foreign currency are
translated into the functional currency using the exchange rates prevailing at the dates of
the transactions. Monetary items denominated in foreign currency are translated using
the closing rate as at thpading date. Nomonetary items denominated in foreign
currency are measured and translated at historicétatateat the date of initial
recognition). Foreign exchange gains and losses resulting from the settlement of foreign
currency transactions d@noim the translation at periethd exchange rates of monetary
assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies are recognized in the Income
statement.

All foreign exchange gains and losses recognized in the Income statement are presented
net in thke Income statement. Foreign exchange gains and losses on other
comprehensive income items are presented in other comprehensive income within the
corresponding item.

241 Changes in accounting policies and disclosures

New and amended standards rnoyet adopted by the Bank
Thereare new orevisedAccouring $andrdsand Interpretaionsin issiethat ae notyet dfective.

These include the following Standardd @ecpretationstha may fave an impact ofuture finarcial
statemerts.
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Notes to the financial statementgcontinued)

Significant accounting policies (continued)

Standard/Interpretation Effective date
IFRS 9 Financial Instruments 1 January 2018
Annual Annual Improvements 31 December 2017
Improvement

s 20182017

Cycle

IFRS 15 Revenue from contract with customers 1 January 2018
IFRS 16 Leases 1 January 2019
IFRS 17 Insurance Contract 1 January 2021

IFRS 92014) Financial Instruments

IFRS 9 has déen conpleted in stageswith the IASB& phaed goproachreflected in a number of the
gardard beng issuedsince 200. Previousversons of the sardard will be sipeseded bythe verson
issledin July 2014 aits dfective dite of 1 Januay 2018.

The canplete version of IFRS 9redaas mogt of the guidancein IAS3 91FRS 9retains butsimplifies
the mixedmeasvementmodel and ddblishes threeprimary measvement categoriesfor financid essds:
amortized cat, far vaue through Other Comprehersive Incame andfair vaue through P&L. The
exiging |AS39 ciegories ofhdd-to-maturity, loans andeceivaldes,and availabefor sde, ae removed.

The bais of dasdficdion depeds on the entity® husness model andthe cotradud cesh flow
characterigtics of the finandal aset. A finarcid assetis dasdfied as being subsegertly measted at
amortized cat if the asat is hdéd within a buiness model whose djective is to collect cantractual
cashflows, and the contractual in termstlué finarcial aset give riseto cash flows that are soldy
paynerts of gincipd andinterest.

A finarcid asst is classfied as being sibseuently measred atfar vaue through ather canprehensve
income if it meds the solely payneris of gincipad andinterest criterion andis héd in a bisiness model
whose dvjectiveisachieved by bth olleding conractual caslhlows and #lingfinarcial asets.

All otherfinarcid assets are ssequertly measuved at far vduethough Profit and Loss In addtion an
entity may, atinitid recagnition, irrevocally designae afinandd asset as atar vaduethrough profit and
lossif doing so Bminaes or sgnificantly reduces aaccounting mis-match that would otherwise arise.

Invegmentsinequty ingrumerts aerequiredto be measveda far vauethrough profit or losswith the
irrevocalbe gotion atinception to presat chargesin far vaue in Other Comprehensve Income.
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Significant accounting policies (continued)

For finandal lidbilities there were no charges to dasification and meaurement except for the
recanition of chagesin own aedit risk in other comprehersive income, for liakilities asignaed atfar
vaue,through profit or loss.IFRS 9rdaxes therequirementsfor hedge dfediveness byedacingthe
bright line hede dfectivenesstests. It requires an eammic relaionsip betweenthe hededitem and
hedying ingrument andor the dhedgedratio t bethesame aghe onemanaement atudly usefor risk
manaement puposes.

Redasdfication of finarcial asets is required if the obective of the binessmodelin which they ae
hdd chamges #ter initid recognition of the assts, and if the clange is significant to the atity®
operdions. Such chaesare expectedto beveryin frequert. No atherredassficaionsare permitted.

New and amended standeds not yet adopted by the Bank

Thereis now a new exged cedit loss modeltha repdaces theinaurred loss imparment model usedh
IAS 39.The newmodel wes a duaheastement appoach underwhich theloss dlowanceis measted
asdther 12 month expetedcredit losss orlifetime expetedlosses.

Disclosures
FRS 9 will require extensive new disclosures, in particular about credit risk and expected credit losses.

Transition

IFRS 9 is effective for annual reportingogls beginning on or after 1 January 2018. Early adoption of

the standard is permitted. The Bank does not intend to adopt the standard earlier. The classification and
measurement and impairment requirements are generally applied retrospectively éxétimsions)

by adjusting the opening retained earnings and reserves at the date of initial application, with no
requirement to restate comparative periods.

TheBankwould beimpacted deto the extensive rew requiremerts for data and cdcuaions andhere
may beaheneedfor new pocessedo dlocaefinancial asetsto the appopriae measirementcategory.

Annual Improvements to IFRS Standards 2082017 Cycle

The I nternational Accounting Standards OBBédard i s:¢
2017 Cycled in December 2017. These are minor ar
I FRS 11, ©6Joint arrangementso6, | AS 12, 06l ncome t
Amended Standard The amendments clarify that:

FRS 3Busines®@binations A company reneasures its previously hg

interest in a joint operation when it obta
control of the business.

FRS 11oint Arrangements A company does not remeasure its previg
held interest in a joint operation when it obta
joint cortrol of the business.

IAS 12Income Taxes A company accounts for all income
consequences of dividend payments in the
way.

IAS 23Borrowing Costs A company treats as part of general borrow

any borrowing originally made to develop an ¢
when the asset is ready for its intended us
sale.

The amendments are effective from 1 January 2019, with early application permitted.
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Clarifying measurement of peviously held interest in obtaining control over a joint operation
under IFRS 3

The amendments clarified that obtaining control of a business that is a joint operation is a business
combination achieved in stages. The acquirer should remeasureusyphaid interest in the joint
operation at fair value at of the acquisition date. The amendments are effective for business
combinations with acquisition date on or after the beginning of annual periods beginning on or after 1
January 2019. Earlier bqgttion is permitted.

New and amended standards not yet adopted by the Bank

Clarifying measurement of previously held interest in obtaining joint control over a joint
operation under IFRS 11

The amendments clarified that the party obtaining joinrbcohta business that is a joint operation

should not remeasure its previously held interest in the joint operation. The amendments are effective
for transactions resulting in obtaining joint control on or after the beginning of annual periods beginning
on or after 1 January 2019 ambt expectedto have asgnificant impact onthe Bark.

Income tax consequences under IAS 12 of payments on financial instruments classified as equity

The amendment clarified that the income tax consequences of digitdimdmcial instruments

classified as equity should be recognised according to where the past transactions or events that
generated distributable profits were recognised. These requirements apply to all income tax consequences
of dividends.

Previouslytiwas unclear whether the income tax consequences of dividends should be recognised in
profit or loss, or in equity, and the scope of the existing guidance was ambiguous. The IASB Board
noted that the amendments do not suggest that an entity recogpieéit an loss the income tax
consequences of all payments on financial instruments classified as equity. Rather, the tax consequences
are recognised in profit or loss only when an entity determines payments on such instruments are
distributions of profé (that is, dividends). An entity may need to apply judgement in making this
determination. These amendments should be applied for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January
2019 to the income tax consequences of dividends recognised on or atgnrimey of the earliest
comparative pericatenot expectedto have agignificant impact onthe Bark.

Borrowing costs eligible for capitalisation under IAS 23

The amendments clarified that if a specific borrowing remains outstanding after the aifiater qu

asset is ready for its intended use or sale, it becomes part of general borrowings. These amendments
should be applied prospectively for borrowing costs incurred on or after the beginning of annual periods
beginning on or after 1 January 206t expectedto have asignificant impact onthe Bark.

1 As the costs of retrospective application might outweigh the benefits, the changes are applied
prospectively to borrowing costs incurred on or after the date an entity adopts the amendments.

IFRS 15 Revenue from contracts with customers

The gardard cantains asingle modelthat aliesto contracts with customers andtwo goproactes to

recanizing revenue:a a point in time or oser time. The model festures a cotract-basedfivestep

ardyss oftrarsactionsto deerminewheher, howmuch andvhenrevenueis recognized.

IFRS 15 Revenue from Contracts with Customers establishes a comprehensive framework for
determining whether, how much and when revenue is recognised. It replaces existing revenue
recognion guidance, including IAS 18 Revenue, IAS 11 Construction Contracts and IFRIC 13
Customer Loyalty Programmes
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The new standard introduces comprehensive guidanikendifying separate components, which
applies to all types of revemgemerating transactions. This could result in goods or services being
unbundled or bundled more frequently than under current practice. However, in most cases, a
60tradi t iobamadntéact celatimg to a single asset or a combination of assets that are closely
interrelated or interdependent, will meet the conditions to be a single performance éhliglaton

treating the whole contract as the unit of account is likelytitaueo

New and amended standards not yet adopted by the Bank

Additionally, contracts are currently accounted for under thefstagepletion method in accordance

with IAS 11 whenever they meet the definition of a construction contract. By tomtnast, standard

uses new concepts that entities need to apply to the specific facts and circumstances of individual
performance obligations. This could result in different assessment od&rmhibsrefore, significant
differences in the timing of rewerrecognitiod compared with current practice.

The core principle of the new standard is that an entity recognises revenue to depict the transfer of
promised goods or services to customers in an amount that reflects the consideration to which the entity
expects to be entitled in exchange for those goods or services. The new standard results in enhanced
disclosures about revenue, provides guidance for transactions that were not previously addressed
comprehensively and improves guidance for muglgmteenarrangements.

The Bank has started formal assessment of potential impact on its financial statements resulting from the
application of IFRS 15 and has initiated any specific actions towards the preparation for implementation
of IFRS 15. Accordingly, ig will provide more informéation in the financial statements for tyesr

erding Decanber 31, 268 in respect of estimating the impact that the application of IFRS 15 will have
on the bankds financial statements.

This new wndxrd will mostlikdy hare asignificant impact onthe Bark, which will include a pssible

changein thetiming ofwhenrevenueis recognized andhe anount ofrevenuerecognized.

This standard sffectivefor anna periods beinning onosefterldanwary 208 with early adoption
pemittedandis not expectedto have asgnificant impact onthe Bark.

IFRS 16 Leases

On January 13, 2016, the International Accounting Standard Board (IASB) published a new standard
IFRS 16 Leases. The standard brings most leadeslantce sheet fogdsees under a singles model,
eliminating the distinction between operating and finance leases. Less or accounting, however remain
largely unchanged and the distinctions is made between operating and finale@3eb8ésases
supersede IAS 17 Leaard related interpretations.

This new w&ndxrd will mostlikely have asignificant impact onthe Bark, which will include a pessible
change in the accounting arrangement for lease transadlomBank is curently in the pocess of
performing amore detalled asessnent oftheimpact ofthis standard onthe Bank andwill provide more
information in the year erding 31D ecenber 28 finarcial $atemerts.

This standard isffectiveor annal periods begnning onoefterl Janwry 2A9 andis not expected to
have asignificant impact onthe Bark.
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New and amended standards not yet adopted by the Bank

Summary of Other Changes to IFRS
The following new or amended standd s ar e not expected to have a s
financial statements.

A Classification and Measurement of Shased Payment Transactighsiendments to IFRS 2
ShareBased Paymér(effective for annual periods beginning on or after ary#a1.8)

A Annual Improvements to IFRS Standards 2015 Cycle(effective for annual periods
beginning on or after 1January 2018) See above.

A IFRIC Interpretation 2Foreign Currency Transactions and Advance Conside(affentve

for annual periods bieging on or after 1 January 2018)
A IFRS 17nsurance contracgsffective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2021)
A 1AS 40 (Amendment3yansfers of Investment Propeféffective for annual periods beginning

on or after 1 January 2018)

25 Interest Income and Expense

Interest income and expense for all interest bearing financial instruments are rectgmized in
Income $at ement within O0int er e ssectiohusimgothmeflectneend O i 1

interest rate method.

The effectie interest rate is the rate that exactly discounts the estimated future cash payments and
receipts through the expected life of the financial asset or liability (or, where appropriate, the next
re-pricing date) to the carrying amount of the financial assebility. When calculating the
effective interest rate, the Bank estimates future cash flows considering all contractual terms of the
financial instruments but not future credit losses.

The calculation of the effective interest rate includes coaltréeés and charges paid or

transaction costs received, and discounts or premiums that are an integral part of the effective

interest rate. Transaction costs are incremental costs that are directly attributable to the acquisition,

issue or disposal ofiadncial asset or liability.

Interest income andpense presented in the Incortae®nent include:

1 Interest on financial assets and liabilities measured at amortized cost calculated on an effective
interest rate basis.

2.6 Fees and commission

Fees an€Commission that are integral to the effective interest rate on a financial asset are included

in the measurement of the effective interest rate. Fees, such as processing and management fees
charged for assessing the financial position of the borrovieatiegaand reviewing guarantee,

coll ateral and ot her security, negotiation (
documentation and finalizing the transaction are an integral part of the effective interest rate on a
financial asset or liabilitpdaare included in the measurement of the effective interest rate of
financial assets or liabilities.

Other fees and commissions which relates mainly to transaction and service fees, including loan
account structuring and service fees, investment managedether fiduciary activity fees, sales
commission, placement line fees, syndication fees and guarantee issuance fees are recognized as the
related services are provided / performed.
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Significant accountng policies (continued)

2.7 Net trading income
Net trading income comprises trading gains and losses on trading in foreign Exchange.

2.8 Leases
Leases are accounted for in accordance with IAS 17 and IFRIC 4. They are divided into finance

leaseand operating leases

The Bank is the lessee

Operating lease

Leases in which a significant portion of the risks and rewards of ownership are retained by
another party, the lessor, are classified as operating leases. Payments, includints,prepaymen
made under operating leases (net of any incentives received from the lessor) are charged to the
income statement on a strailifine basis over the period of the lease. When an operating lease is
terminated before the lease period expires, any pagqergd to be made to the lessor by way

of penalty is recognized as an expense in the period in which the termination takes place.

2.9. Financial assets and liabilities
0] Recognition
The Bank initially recognizes loans and advances, deposits @ueurds) Central Bank
and to intercompany on the date that the transactions are originated. All other financial assets
and liabilities are initially recognized on the trade date at which the Bank becomes a party to
the contractual provisions of the instemtn
(i) Classification

The classification of financial instruments depends on the purpose, characteristics and

management ds intention for which the finan
classification of financial assets and liabilities @reordance with IAS 39.

a) Loans and Receivables

Loans and advances are -denivative financial assets with fixed or determinable
payments that are not quoted in an active market and that the Bank does not intend to
sell immediately or in the neanter

Loans are initially recognized at their transaction price, which is the cash amount advance
to the borrower. In addition, the net of direct and incremental transaction costs and fees
are included in the initial carrying amount of the loans.

These loas are subsequently measured at amortized cost using the effective interest
method less impairment.

Loans which have been acquired as assets purchased are initially recognized at fair value

at the acquisition date. The fair value at the acquisitidnatapmrates expected cash
flow which considers the credit quality of these loans including any incurred losses.
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Cash and cash equivalents include notes amsdocoland, unrestricted balances held

with the Central Bank of Liberia and highly liquid financial assets with original maturities
of less than three months, as well as cash on deposit with premier correspondent banks,
which are subject to insignificaskrof changes in their fair value, and are used by the
Bank in the management of its shemnn financial commitments. Cash and cash
equivalents are carried at amortized cost in the Statement of financial position.

b) Investment Securities

(1) Available-for-sale

Availabl€for-sale assets are those intended to be held for an indefinite period of time, which may be
sold in response to the bankds needs for | iqui
prices. Investment securities and trgalills with a maturity of 182 days or less are classified as
available for sale.

Financial assets not classified as at fair value through profit or loss or as loans are classified as
Availabldor-sale (AFS). A financial asset is initially recognitedait value plus transaction costs

that are directly attributable to the acquisition of the financial assets. Financial assets classified as AFS
are carried at fair value with the changes in fair value reported in other comprehensive income, unless
theasset is subject to a fair value hedge, in which case changes in fair value resulting from the risk of
being hedged, in which case changes in fair value are recorded in other income.

Financial assets classified as avditaidale (AFS) are assessedrgrairment as discussed in the
section entitles 6l mpairment of financi al asset
Shares of Blue chip companies held for sale to the public are classified afoegailalaled are

recognized on tradfatethe date on which the bank commits to thel@ase of the instrument.

() Held-to maturity

Heldto-maturity assets are nderivative financial assets with fixed or determinable payments and
fixed maturities that management has an intention and ability to hold to maturity. éNghe ithe

sell nore than an insignificant amount of Relthaturity assets, the entire category would have to be
reclassified as available for sale. Treasury bills with an original maturity of more than 182 days, treasury
notes and other government bonds are classifferldto-maturity.

c) Government Bonds

Government bonds are measured at the face amount of the instrument and recognized at the date
the instrument is issued. Bonds interests are amortized over the life of the instrument.
Government Bonds are reported amried at amortized costs.

d) Restricted Assets
These are reported when restrictions on the use of the assets change the nature or the normal
understanding of the availability of the assets. For example, cash held with correspondent banks
are normally clafied as cash and cash equivalents, and normal understanding of these presumes
that restrictions do not | imit the bankods ab
cash and investment held in a separate account that can only be ugeabligagan, for
example, a letter of credit commitment as required by the arrangements and cannot be used to
settle other current obligations are reported as restricted assets and classified under other Assets
on the satement of financial position.
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e)

(iii)

Financial assets classified as Availablfer-sale (AFS)

Financial assets that are not classified as at fair value through profit or loss or as loans are
classified a8vailablefor-sale (AFS). A financial asset is initially recognized as its fair value plus
transaction costs that are directly attributable to the acquisition of the financial assets. The
amortization of premiums and accretion of discount are recordest interest income.

Financial assets classified as AFS are carried at fair value with the changes in fair value reported in
other comprehensive income, unless the asset subject to a fair value hedge, in which case changes
in fair value resulting from thek of being hedged are recorded in other income.

Financial assets classified as avditattdale (AFS) are assessed for impairment as discussed in
the section entitled 6l mpairment of financi al
gan on financial assets availdbfesale.

Measurement

All financial instruments are measured initially at their fair value plus transaction costs. For assets
and liabilities not quoted in active markets, fair value is determined using tedhaigpres,

such as discounted cash flows models or option pricing models. Such valuation techniques
estimate the price that would have been paid in derggth transaction motivated by normal
business consideration on the balance sheet date.

Non-traddle financial liabilities are measured at amortized cost. Subsequent recognition of
financial assets and liabilities is at amortized cost or fair value.

a) Amortized cost measurement

The amortized cost of a financial asset or liability is the amounhahweffiicancial asset or
liability is measured at initial recognition, minus principal repayments, plus or minus the
cumulative amortization using the effective interest rate method of any difference between
the initial amount recognized and the maturiguat, minus any reduction for impairment.

b) Fair value measurement

Fair value is the amount for which an asset could be exchanged, or a liability settled, between
knowl edgeabl e, willing parties in an ar mods

(iv)  Offsetting

Financial assets and liabilities are set off and the net amount presented in the
statements of financial position when, and only when, the Bank has a legal right

to set off the amounts and intends either to settle on a net basislzddire

asset and settle the liability simultaneously. Income and expenses are presented

on a net basis only when permitted under IFRSs, or for gains and losses arising
from a group of similar transactions sudhmas t he Bankds trading

(v) De-recognition
On derecognition of a financial asset, the difference between the carrying
amount of the asset (or the carrying amount allocated to the portion of the
asset transferred), and the sum of (i) the consideration received (including any
new assaibtained less any new liability assumed) and (ii) any cumulative gain
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or loss that had been recognized in other comprehensive income is recognized
in profit orloss.

The Bank derecognizes a financial asset when the contractual rights to the cash
flows from the financial asset expire, or when it transfers the rights to receive
the contractual cash flows in a transaction in which substantially all the risks
and revards of ownership of the financial asset are transferred or when it is no
longer permissible to continue carrying the asset under IFRS.

In certain transactions the Bank retains the obligations to service the
transferred financial asset for a fee. Tinsfamed asset is derecognized if it
meets the deecognition criteria. An asset or liability is recognized for the
servicing contract, depending on whether the servicing fee is more than
adequate (asset) or is less than adequate (liability) for petfarmmémngicing.

The Bank enters into transactions whereby it transfers assets recognized on its
statement of financial position, but retains either all or substantially all of the
risks and rewards of the transferred assets or a portion of them. If all or
substantially all risks and rewards are retained, then the transferred assets are
not derecognized. Transfers of assets with retention of all or substantially all
risks and rewards include, for example, securities lending and repurchase
transactions. Inrdnsactions in which the Bank neither retains nor transfers
substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership of a financial asset and it
retains control over the asset, the Bank continues to recognize the asset to the
extent of its continuing involvemedetermined by the extent to which it is
exposed to changes in the value of the transferred asset.

The Bank derecognizes a financial liability other than financial guarantees and
loan commitments as measured at amortized cost.

(vi) Identification and measurement of impairment

Assets carried at amortized cost

The Bank assesses at each reporting date whether there is objective evidence
that a financial asset or group of financial assets is impaired. A financial asset or

a group of financial assetsnipaired and impairment losses are incurred only

if there is objective evidence of impairment as a result of one or more events
that occurred after the initial recog:
loss event (or events) has an impact on tineaésd future cash flows of the

financial asset or group of financial assets that can be reliably estimated. The
criteria that the Bank uses to determine that there is objective evidence of an
impairment loss include:

(a) significant financial difficulty téfe issuer or obligor;

(b) a breach of contract, such as a default or delinquency in interest or
principal payments;
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(c) the lender, for economic or legal reasonsrelgf t o t he borr
financial difficulty, granting to the borrower a concession that the
lender would not otherwise consider;

(d) it becomes probable that the borrower will enter bankruptcy or
other financial rerganization;

(e) the disappearance of an actmarket for that financial asset
because of financial difficulties; or

() observable data indicating that there is a measurable decrease in the
estimated future cash flows from a portfolio of financial assets
since the initial recognition of those asséimugh the decrease
cannot yet be identified with the individual financial assets in the
portfolio, including:

() adverse changes in the payment status of borrowers in the
portfolio; and

(i) national economic conditions that correlate with defaults
onthe assets in the portfolio.

The estimated period between a ¢mssirring and its identification is determined by
local management for each identified portfolio. In general, the periods used vary
between three months and 12 months; in exceptional loeggs, periods are
warranted.

The Bank first assesses whether objective evidence of impairment exists individually for
financial assets that are individually significant, and individually or collectively for
financial assets that are not individualhyifisignt. If the Bank determines that no
objective evidence of impairment exists for an individually assessed financial asset,
whether significant or not, it includes the asset in a group of financial assets with similar
credit risk characteristics andemively assesses them for impairment. Assets that are
individually assessed for impairment and for which an impairment loss is or continues to
be recognized are not included in a collective assessment of impairment.

The amount of the loss is measured &dse di fference between t
amount and the present value of estimated future cash flows (excluding future credit

|l osses that have not been incurred) disco
interest rate. The carrying amoohtthe asset is reduced through the use of an
allowance account and the amount of tbeikbrecognized in the Incona&nent. If

a loan or heldo-maturity investment has a variable interest rate, the discount rate for
measuring any impairment loghéscurrent effective interest rate determined under the
contract. As a practical expedient, the Bank may measure impairment on the basis of an
instrumentds fair value using an observab

The calculation of the present value of the estimdted cash flows of a collateralized
financial asset reflects the cash flows that may result from foreclosure less costs for
obtaining and selling the collateral, whether or not foreclosure is probable.

For the purposes of a collective evaluation chirmpnt, financial assets are grouped
on the basis of similar credit risk chara
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grading process that considers &ggef industry, geographical location, collateral type,
pastdue status and other relevant factors).

Those characteristics are relevant to the estimation of future cash flows for groups of
such assets by being i ndliamauntsiduesaccardingtohe d e
the contractual terms of the assets being evaluated.

Future cash flows in a group of financial assets that are collectively evaluated for

impairment are estimated on the basis of the contractual cash flows of the assets in the
bank and historical loss experience for assets with credit risk characteristics similar to
those in the bank. Historical loss experience is adjusted on the basis of current

observable data to reflect the effects of current conditions that did noheffesidad

on which the historical loss experience is based and to remove the effects of conditions
in the historical period that do not currently exist.

Estimates of changes in future cash flows for grotipssets should reflect and be
directionally cagistent with changes in related observable data from period to period
(for example, changes in unemployment rates, property prices, payment status, or other
factors indicative of changes in the probability of losses in the Bank and their
magnitude). The ritedology and assumptions used for estimating future cash flows are
reviewed regularly by the Bank to reduce any differences between loss estimates and
actual loss experience.

When a loan is uncollectible, it is written off against the related allawdnee f
impairment. Such loans are written off after all the necessary procedures have been
completed and the amount of the loss has been determined. Impairment charges relating

to loans and advances to banks and customers are classified in loan iropaigesnt

whilst impairment charges relating to investment securities (held to maturity category)
are classified in O0ONet impairment | oss on

If, in a subsequent period, the amount of the impairment loss decreases and the decrease
can be elated objectively to an event occurring after the impairment was recognized
(such as an i mprovement in the debtords
impairment loss is reversed by adjusting the allowance account. The amount of the
reveral is reognized in the Incomddiement.

210 Property, plant and equipment
0] Recognition and measurement

The bank recognizes items of property, plant and equipment at the time the
cost is incurred. These costs include costs incurred initially to acquire or
corstruct an item of property and equipment. This cost also includes the costs
of its dismantlement, removal or restoration, the obligation for which an entity
incurs is a consequence of using the item during a particular period.

Items of property, plant amdjuipment are measured at cost less accumulated
depreciation and impairment losses. Cost includes expenditures that are directly
attributable to the acquisition of the asset.

When parts of an item of property, plant or equipment have different useful

lives, they are accounted for as separate items (major components) of property,
plant and equipment.
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(i) Land and Buildings

The Bank reports diind and buildings at theevalued amount, being their
fair value less any subsequent accumulated depreciation and impairment losses.

Revaluation is carried out with sufficient regularity, in this case, every five (5)
years to ensure that the carrying amount does not dedeialgafrom that
which would be determined using fair value at the end of the reporting period.

If the asset carrying amount is increased as a result of revaluation, the increase
is recognized in other comprehensive income and accumulated in equity unde
a heaRldwmal utat i olHowewvar, rthe linareade is recognized in
profit and Loss to the extent that it reverses a revaluation decrease of the same
asset previously recognized in profit and loss. If an asset carrying amount is
decreased as a resilta revaluation, the decrease is recognized in profit and
loss. However, the decrease can be recognized in other comprehensive income
to the extent of any credit balance existing in the revaluation Surplus in respect
of that asset.

T he a sryimgtvau@ds andauseful lives are reviewed, and written down if
appropriate, at each date of the Statements of financial position. Assets are
impaired whenever events or changes in circumstances indicate that the
carrying amount is less than the recolernount on impairment of non
financial assets.

(iii) Leasehold Improvements

Leasehold improvements are additions or improvements the bank makes to
lease properties. They are typically referred to as improvements made to
buildings or land (real propertieggttthe Bank currently occupies through an
operating lease.

Expenditure made to improve leased properties are capitalized if the lease term
is more than one year and reported as atdimewith Property, Plant and
Equipment in the statement of financ@sipon. Leasehold improvements are
amortized over the shorter of the remaining life of the lease term or the useful
life of the asset.

(iv) Subsequent costs

The cost of replacing part of an itemPobperty, Plant or Equipment is
recognized in the carrying@unt of the item if it is probable that the future
economic benefits embodied within the part will flow to the Bank and its cost
can be measured reliably. The carrying amount of the replaced part is
derecognized. The costs of thetdagay servicing gdroperty and equipment

are recognized in the income statement as incurred.

(v) Depreciation
Depreciation is recognized in the income statement on a -itraidlatsis to
write down the cost of each asset, to their residual values over the estimated
useful ives of each part of an item of property, plant and equipment. Leased
assets under finance lease are depreciated over the shorter of the lease term and
their useful lives.

Page |25



o V4
Lib Bank for Devel t&|l t t (LBDI
iberian Bank for Developmen nvestment ( ) %AKER TILLY

LIBERIA

Il ndependent Auditorsd Report and Finan
For the year ended Decembér 31, 201

Notes to the financial statementgcontinued)
Significant accounting policies (conthued)

Depreciation begins when an asset is available for use and ceases at the earlier
of the date that the asset is derecognized or classified as held for sale in
accordance with IFRS 5. A namrent asset or disposal group is not
depreciated while & classified as held for sdlee estimated useful lives for

the current and comparative periods are as follows:

Item of Property, Plant and Equipment Estimated Useful Life

Leasehold improvements Over the shorter of the useful
Life of the item or lease term

Buildings Fair value approach
Furniture and equipment 10 years
Computer hardware 5 years

Motor vehicles 3 years
Miscellaneous properties 3 years

Capital work in progress is not depreciated. Upon completion it is transferred
to the relevant asset category. Depreciation methods, useful lives and residual
values are reassessed at each reporting date.

(iv) De-recognition

An item of property and equipment is derecognized on disposal or when no
future economic benefits are expected from its use. Any gain or loss arising on
derecognition of the asset (calculated as the difference between the net
disposal proceeds and therging amount of the asset) is included in the
income statement in the year the asset is derecognized.

2.11 Investment Properties

Investment properties include office buildings and other real properties that are held for long
term rental yields and/ocapital appreciation. Investment properties include properties
constructed or developed for future use as investment properties.

Investment properties are recognized initially at cost and subsequently carried at fair value
determined every five yearsraependent valuers on the highest anelisegbasis. Changes in

fair values are recognized in profit or loss. Investment properties are subject to renovations and
improvements at regular intervals.
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The cost of major renovations and improvements is capitalized and the carrying amount of the
replaced component is recognized in profit or loss. The cost of repairs, maintenance and minor
improvements are recognized nofip or loss when incurred. On disposal of investment
properties, the difference between the carrying amount and disposal proceeds is recognized in
profit or loss.

2.12 Intangible assets

2.12.1 Software

Software acquired by the Bank is stated satless accumulated amortization and
accumulated impairment losses.

Expenditure on internally developed software is recognized as an asset when the Bank is
able to demonstrate its intention and ability to complete the development and use the
software in ananner that will generate future economic benefits, and can reliably
measure the costs to complete the development. Development costs previously
expensed cannot be capitalized. The capitalized costs of internally developed software
include all costs dithc attributable to developing the software and capitalized
borrowing costs, and are amortized over its useful life. Internally developed software, if
any, is stated at capitalized cost less accumulated amortization and impairment.

Subsequent expenditura software assets is capitalized only when it increases the
future economic benefits embodied in the specific asset to which it relates (e.g.
upgrading or modification cost). All other expenditure is expensed as incurred.

Amortization is recognized inofit or loss on a straighhe basis over the estimated
useful life of the software, from the date that it is available for use since this most
closely reflects the expected pattern of consumption of the future economic benefits
embodied in the asset. Timaximum useful life of software is between five and ten
years.

Amortization methods, useful lives and residual values are reviewed at each financial
yearend and adjusted if appropriate.

2.8 Impairment of non-financial assets

The carrying amounts bfh e B a 1fifaricial assatsrare reviewed at each reporting

date to determine whether there is any indication of impairment. If any such indication
exi sts t hen t he assetds recoverabl e amo
determined and recognizatithe asset. For intangible assets that have indefinite useful

lives or that are available for use, the recoverable amount is estimated each year.
However, the Bank chooses the cost model measurement to reassess intangible assets
after initial recognitioi.e. depreciated cost less any accumulated impairment losses.

An impairment loss is recognized if the carrying amount of an asset or- its cash
generating unit exceeds its recoverable amount. -§ecashting unit is the smallest
identifiable asset groudpat generates cash flows that largely are independent from
other assets and groups. Impairment losses are recognized in the income statement.
Impairment losses recognized in respect ofgeamdrating units are allocated first to
reduce the carrying anmbwf any goodwill allocated to the units and then to reduce the
carrying amount of the other assets in the unit (group of units) on a pro rata basis.
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2.4

2.6

2.6

The recoverablamount of an asset or cgsnerating unit is the greater of its value in

use and its fair value less costs to sell. In assessing value in use, the estimated future cash
flows are discounted to their present value usingtaxpdéscount rate that refile

current market assessments of the time value of money and the risks specific to the
asset.

Impairment losses recognized in prior periods are assessed at each reporting date for
any indications that the loss has decreased or no longer exists. Aremnfmss is

reversed if there has been a change in the estimates used to determine the recoverable
amount. An impairment | oss is reversed or
amount does not exceed the carrying amount that would have beeinathtaet of

depreciation or amortization, if no impairment loss had been recognized.

Deposits

Deposits are the Bankds sources of debt f
and simultaneously enters eénhtdrepureahasethe po 6 o
asset (or a similar asset) at a fixed price on a future date, the arrangement is accounted
for as a deposit, and the wunderlying ass
financial statements.

The Bank classifies capital instmises financial liabilities or equity instruments in
accordance with the substance of the contractual terms of the instruments.

Deposits are initially measured at fair value plus transaction costs, and subsequently
measured at their amortized cost usiegffective interest method.

Provisions

A provision is recognized if, as a result of a past event, the Bank has a present legal or
constructive obligation that can be estimated reliably, and it is probable that an outflow
of economic benefits Wbe required to settle the obligation. Provisions are determined

by discounting the expected future cash flows attaxprate that reflects current

market assessments of the time value of money and, where appropriate, the risks
specific to the liakiii.

A provision for restructuring is recognized when the Bank has approved a detailed and
formal restructuring plan, and the restructuring either has commenced or has been
announced publicly. The Bank recognizes no provision for future operating losses.

A provision for onerous contracts is recognized when the expected benefits to be

derived by the Bank from a contract are lower than the unavoidable cost of meeting its
obligations under the contract. The provision is measured at the present value of the
lower of the expected cost of terminating the contract and the expected net cost of

continuing with the contract. Before a provision is established, the Bank recognizes any
impairment loss on the assets associated with that contract.

Financial guaranees
Financial guarantees are contracts that require the Bank to make specified payments to

reimburse the holder for a loss it incurs because a specified debtor fails to make
payment when due in accordance with the terms of a debt instrument.
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Financial guarantee liabilities are initially recognized at their fair value, and the initial fair
value is amortized over the life of the financial guarantee.

The guarantekability is subsequently carried at the higher of this amortized amount
and the present value of any expected payment (when a payment under the guarantee
has become probable). Financial guarantees, principally consisting of letters of credit are
includedwithin other liabilities.

2.7/ Employee benefits
(1) Defined contribution plans

A defined contribution plan is a pension plan under which the Bank pays fixed
contributions to a separate entity. The Bank has no legal or constructive
obligations to pay fumér contributions if the fund does not hold sufficient
assets to pay all employees the benefits relating to employee service in the
current and prior periods.

(i) Termination benefits

Termination benefits are recognized as an expense when the Bank is
demongtably committed, without realistic possibility of withdrawal, to a formal
detailed plan to terminate employment before the normal retirement date.
Termination benefits for voluntary redundancies are recognized if the Bank has
made an offer encouraging witéury redundancy, it is probable that the offer

will be accepted, and the number of acceptances can be estimated reliably. If
benefits are payable more than 12 months after the reporting date, then they are
discounted to their present value.

(iii) Shortterm employee benefits

Shortterm employee benefit obligations are measured on an undiscounted
basis and are expensed as the related service is provided.

A liability is recognized for the amount expected to be paid unddeshort
cash bonus or prof#haring plans if the Bank has a present legal or
constructive obligation to pay this amount as a result of past service provided
by the employee and the oliligacan be estimated reliably.
2.8 Share capital and reserves
(@ Share issue costs

Incremental coswirectly attributable to the issue of an equity instrument are
deducted from the initial measurement of the equity instrument.

(i) Dividend on the Bankds ordinary shares

Dividends on the Bankds ordinary sha
approvedbyte Bankds sharehol der s.
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2.0 Earnings per share

The Bank presents basic earnings per share (EPS) for its ordinary shares. Basic EPS is
calculated by dividing theofit or loss attributable to ordinary shareholders of the Bank
by the weighted average number of ordinary shares outstanding during the period.

3.0  Financial risk management
3.1 Introduction and overview

The Liberian Bank for Development andelstment (LBDI) has a robust and functional
Enterprisewide Risk Management (ERM) Framework that is responsible for identifying and
managing the whole universe of inherent and residual risks facing the Bank. The bank has
exposure to the following risks frigmuse of financial instruments:

Credit risk

Liquidity risk
Market risks

Foreign exchange risk
Strategy risk and
Reputational risk

=A =4 =4 =8 -8 4

This note presents information about the ban
bankds poleiscsieess faorrd nperacsscur i hg and managing ri
capital.

3.2  Risk management philosophy

The risk management philosophy of the bank is drawn from its mission and vision statements
and seeks to achieve maximum optimization of kn@resurn trade off, while ensuring strong
commitment to the following key indices:

1 excellent service delivery across business segments

1 sound performance reporting (financial andfiramncial)

1 sound corporate governance

9 consistent appreciationof shdaro | d ejrasdd v al ue

9 appreciation of contribution of employees

The bank will continue to adhere to the following risk principles to perform consistently on the
above stated indices:

1 the Bank will not take any action that will compromise its intagriggund
performance reporting (financial and-financial)

1 the Bank will adhere to the risk management practice of identifying, measuring,
controlling and reporting risks;

9 risk control will not constitute an impediment to the achievemiret Bank's
Stategic objectives;

9 the Bank will always comply with all government regulattbembrace global
best practices; and

1 the Bank will only assume risks that fall within its risk appetite which
commensurate with returns.
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3.3

Risk management framework

The bankds risk management policies are esta
the bank, set appropriate risk limits and controls, monitor riskshemenad to limits. This
policy is subject to review at leasteoa year at the level of tloail of Directors.

More frequent reviews may be conducted in the opinion of the Board, when changes in laws,
mar ket conditions or rial leroughta mpdattson the domtinuedt i e s
adoption of existing policies. The bank, through its training and management standards and
procedures, aims to develop a disciplined and constructive control environment, in which all

employees understand their radbfigations and responsibilities.

The Board of Directors has overall responsibility for the establishment and oversight of the
bankos ri sk management o TThaemeBoa kd dvs aRiistks Ma
Committee, Credit Committedudit & Compliame Committeeand Assets & Liabilities

Committee These committees are responsible for developing and monitoring risk policies in

their specified areas and report regularly to the Board of Directors on their ddimiges.

also an Executive Committeleaired by the President considering of those Board members
resident in Liberia which meets if emergencies arise.

The Board Committees are assisted by the various Management Committees in identifying and
assessing risks arising from the day to datiextifithe bank. These committees are:

TheManagemer€redit Committed{CC)
Management Assets and Liabilities Committed (BO)
Management Audit Committee

Other Adhoc Committees

=A =4 =4 =4

Audit and Risk Management havexecutive members.
These committeaseet on a regular basis while others are set up omaemn lzakis as dictated
by circumstances.

The bankos A u dsi respor@iblen foii maniorng compliance with the risk
management policies and procedures, and for reviewing the adequadégkahtdreagement
framework in relation to risks faced by the bank. The Audit Committee is assisted by the
Internal AuditDepartment, in carrying out these functions. Internal Audit undertakes both
regular and aldoc reviews of risk management controls aakgures, the results of which are
reported to the Audit Committee.

Risk management of the Bank is structured as follows:

The Boar dodos RiCGkmitdaisrasgomsibk fot reviewing and recommending

risk management policies, procedures andeprofitluding risk philosophy, risk appetite and

risk tolerance levels of the bank. The oversight functions cut across all risk areas. The committee
monitors the Bank&s plans and-BasedoSgpergison t owa
requirements and gmation to Basel Il compliance as well as the overall Regulatory and Capital
Adequacy and the Bank6s transition to | FRS.

The bankés Board of Directors has delegated
theBoard Credit Committee The BoardCredit Committee considers and approves all lending
exposuresabove management limit but up to LRD 0.5 mil®well as insideglated credits

in excess of limits assigned toMamagement Credit Committeeby the Board.
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Management Credit Committee formulates credit policies in consultation with business units,
covering credit assessment, risk grading and reporting, collateral, regulatory and statutory
requiremets. The committee also assesses and approves all credit exposures in excess of the
Managemen€redit Committee unit and recommends then for approval by the Board Credit
Committee (BCC). The BCC in turns recommends credits in exbegdiwit for approal by

the full Board.

The Assets & Liabilities Management Committeee st abl i shes the bank?qo
policies covering the various components of Market and Liquidity Risks. These include issues on
Interest Rate Risk, Liquidity Risk, Investment RidkTaading Risk. It ensures that the

authority delegated by the Board iathagement Risk Committeeswith regards to Market

Risk is exercised, and that Market Risk exposures are monitored and managed effectively.
Furthermore, the Committee limits and nawaithe potential impact of specific-gedined

market movements on the comprehensive income of the Bank through stress tests and
simulations.

The Management Credit Committeeis responsible for identifying, controlling, monitoring
and reporting creditsi related issues. The Head of Credit Administration (CAD) of the bank
also serves as the secretariat fdvilreagementCredit Committee.

Credit risk is the most critical risk for the bank as credit exposures, arising from lending activities
account fot he maj or portion of the bankds assets
ensures that credit risk related exposures are properly monitored, managed and controlled.

The Credit Risk Management Department is responsible for managing the ceeoligsexpo
which arise as a result of the lending and investment activities as well as other unfunded credit
exposures that have default probabilities; such as contingent liabilities.

3.4 Risk management methodology
The bank recognizes that it is in thérmss of managing risks to derive optimal satisfaction for
all stakeholders. It has therefore, over the years detailed its approach to risk management
through various policies and procedures, which include the following:

RM Policies

Credit Policy Guide

Human Resources Policy Manual
Standard Operating Procedures
IT Policies

Treasury policies

= =4 =4 =8 -8 -4

To ensure adherence to the policies and procedures, several exception reports on customers and
activities of the bank are generated by the various auditeamtrot s f or manage ment
making. These include:
1 Monthly Management Profitability Reports (MPR) for the marketing teams
including branches and business units;
Monthly Operations Performance Reports (OPR) for the support teams;
Quarterly Business Fitability Review ;
Annual Bankwvide performance appraisal systems
Criticized Asset Committee Report
Monthly Expense Control Monitoring Repartd
Semiannual Strategy Review

= =4 =4 =8 -8 -4
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3.5

3.6

Risk management overview

The bank operates a functional Risk Management Departmespdhistto the Board of Risk
Management CommitteEhe risk management infrastructure theréfiotieer encompasses a
comprehensive and integratpdraach to identifying, managing and reporting risks:

(i) themain riskcategories covered by LBDI are those outlined in the CBL guidelines:
Credit Market/Liquidity and Operational;
(i) additional core risks such as Reputation and Strategy risks.

The bak has implemented the Basel Il recommended capital measurement approaches for the
estimate of the bankds economic capital requ
place other qualitative and quantitative measures that will assistawiimgmisk management
processes and creating a platform for moradijsisted decisiamaking.

Credit risk

Lending and other financial activities form the core business of the bank. The bank recognizes
this and has laid great emphasis on e#faotimagement of its exposure to credit risk. The bank
defines credit risk as the risk of counterpa
with the bank or otherwise to perform as agr
extsnded, committed, invested or otherwise exposed through actual or implied contractual
agreements.

The bankds speci fic credit risk objectives,
Framework, are:

maintenance of an efficient loan portfolio

institutioralization of sound credit culture in the Bank

adoption of international best practices in credit risk management

m nimizing the bankds ;jsndposure to pote
development of Credit Risk Management professionals.

= =4 =8 =8 =4

Each business unit is regdito implement credit policies and procedures in line with the credit
approval authorities granted by the Board. Each business unit is responsible for the quality and
performance of its credit portfolio and for monitoring and controlling all crediinritks
portfolio, including those subject to Manage.!

The Internal Audit an@ompliance Departmenndertakeregular audits of business units and
credit quality reviews.

The bank continues to focus attention on intrimsid concentration risks inherent in its
business in order to manage its portfolio risk. It sets portfolio concentration limits that are
measured under the following parameters: concentration limits per obligor, business lines,
industry, sector, ratingagie and geographical area within Liberia. Sector limits reflect the risk
appetite of the bank.

The bank drives the credit risk management processes using a combination of appropriate
technology and market experience to achieve global best practices.
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For Credit Risk Capital Adequacy computation under Basel Il Pillar |, the bank has commenced
with the use of the Standardized Approach for Credit Risk Measurenengllating relevant
data required for migration to the Internal Rating Based (Foundation) Approach.

For risk management purposes, credit risk arising on trading securities is managed
independently, but reported as a component of market risk exposure.

3.7  Management of credit risk

The Board of Directors has delegated responsibility for the management of credit risk to its
Board Credit Commi ttee. The Board Credit com
credit risk, including:

1 Formulatingredit policiesconsultation with business units, covering collateral
requirements, credit assessment, risk grading and reporting, documentary and
legal procedures, and compliance with regulatory and statutory requirements.

i Establishing the authorizatructufer the approval and renewal of credit
facilities. Authorization limits are allocated to the Executive Credit Committee,
Deputy Chief Executive Officer, Chief Executive Officer and the Board Credit
Committee/Board of Directors as appropriate.

1 Reviewing and assessing chditaggment Credit Commnettessesses all credit
exposuresprior to facilities being committed to customers by the business unit
concerned. Renewals and reviews of facilities are subject to the same review
process.

T Devel opi ng and mai n inalder tocalegorize expasuaes k 6 s
according to the degree of risk of financial loss faced and to focus management
on the attendant risks. The current risk grading framework consists of ten
grades reflectingarying degrees of risk of default and the availability of
collateral or other credit risk mitigation. The responsibility for approving the
risk grades lies with the Board Credit Committee. The risk grades are subject to
regular reviews by the Risk Manmsge Committee

1 Reviewing compbtiibcsiness units with agreed exposure limits, including those
for selected industries, country risk and product types. Regular reports are
provided to the Board Risk Management Committee on the credit quality of
portfolios and appropriate corrective action is taken.

1 Providing advice, guidance and specilistsskélss units to promote best
practice throughout the bank in the management of credit risk.

There were no changes i n est As eredh 3 nekti@lzed,reach k ma |
business unit is required to implement credit policies and procedures, in line with credit approval
policies authorized by the Board Credit Committee.
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3.8

39

Credit risk measurement

In line with IAS 39, the bank adopted incurred loss approach and intends to migrate to the
expected loss approach outlined under IFRS 9. The incurred loss approach takes into
consideration the engemce period (EP) to arrive at losses that have been incurred at the
reporting date. To enable the bank migrate to the internal rating based (foundation approach) as
well as the expected loss approach as outlined under IFRS 9, the bank has devigogad its in
rating models.

LBDI undertakes |l ending activities after car
repay, cash flow, credit history, industry and other factors. The bank acknowledges that there are
diverse intrinsic risks inherenttidifferent business segments and, as a result, applies different
parameters to adequately dimension the risks in each business segment.

The Bankds rating grades reflect the range
probabilities of each nag class in line with international best practices and in compliance with
BASEL Il requirements. The grades reflect granularities and are handled by Account Officers
and Relationship Managers with further check by Credit Risk Analysis Unit in Credit Risk
Management Department.

Standardize methoHave been used to estimate the amount of credit exposures, as the value of

a product varies with changes in market variables, expected cash flows and time. The assessment
of credit risk of a portfolio of assetdadls further estimations as to the likelihood of defaults
occurring

Risk Limit Control and Mitigation Policies

The bank applies limits to control credit risk concentration and diversification of its risk assets
portfolio. The Bank maintains limits individual borrowers and groups of related borrowers,
business lines, rating grade and geographical area.

The Bank adopted obligor limits as set by the regulators and it is currently at 20% of the Bank
sharehol der sd f unds .posures & courtdrparties and felatedipartiesc o v e r
Although the Bank is guided by this regulatory limit, we apply additional parameters internally in
determining the suitable limits that an individual borrower should have.

These include: obligor rating, posiin the industry and perceived requirements of key players
(e. g. i mport finance | imit may be determined
each gcle), financial analysis, etc.

The Bank imposes industry/economic sector limits to ganiestagponcentration risk as a result

of exposures to sets of counterparties operating in a particular industry. The industry limits are
arrived at after rigorous analysis of the risks inherent in the industry/economic sectors. The
limits are usually recommm ded by the Bankds Board Credit
Board. The limits set for each industry or economic sector depend on the historical performance

of the sector as well as the intelligence report on the outlook of the sector. During the period,
limits can be realigned (by way of outright removal, reduction or increase) to meet the exigencies

of the prevailing macroeconomic events.

The Bank also sets internal credit approval limits for various levels of officers in the credit
process.
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Approval decisions are guided by the Bankods
the other limits established by the board or regulatory authoritieassAggregate Large

Exposure Limits, Single Obligor Limits, and Geographical Limits, Industry / Economic sector

limits etc. The lending authority in the Bank flows through the management hierarchy with the

final authority residing with the Board of Divext

The deposit required for all cash collateralized facilities (with the exception of bonds, guarantees
and indemities) must be 12® of the facility amount to provide a cushion for interest and
other charges.

3.0 Collateral policies

The Bank ensurahat each credit is reviewed and granted based on the strength of the
borrowers®é& cash fIl ow. However, the Bank al so
second way out strategy. The policies that guide collateral for facilities are entbiedihed

Bankds Credit Policy Guide.

These include the following policy statements amongst others:

0] Loans to individuals or sole proprietors must be secured by tangible, marketable
collateral that has a market value that is supported by a valuatidrorega registered
estate value who is acceptable to the Bank. The collateral must also be easy to check and
easyto dispose ofThis collateral must be in the possession of, or pledged to the Bank

(i) Clientds account bal aooveemovited lsyits chllateravi t hi n

(i) All collateral offered must have the following attributes:

- there must be good legal title

- the title must be easy to transfer

- it should be easy and relatively cheap tg value

- the value should be apprecatin at least stablend

- the security must be easy to sell
All collateral must be fully insured. Exceptions include cash collateral, securities in safe keeping,
indemnity or guarantees, or where our interest is general (for instance in a negalivéheledg
insurance policy has to be issued by an insurer acceptable to the Bank.

The main collateral types acceptable to the Bank for loans and advances include:

(i) mortgages over residential properties
(i) dhattels over business premises, fixed @atihfy assets as well as invensorg
(i) charges over financial instruments such as equities, other assets, etc.

The Bank ensures that other financial assets, aside from loans and advances, such as
Bank placements, are secured.

3.1 Off-balance sheeengagements

These instruments are contingent in nature and carry the same credit risk as loans and advances.
As a policy, the Bank ensures that all ibatéince sheet exposures are subjected to the same
rigorous credit analysis, like that of théadance sheet exposures, before a ailment. The major
offbal ance sheet items in the Bankds books are
issue where it has full cash collateral or a counter indemnity from a first class bank, or another
acceptablsecurity.
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3.2 Contingencies

Contingent assets which include transaction related bonds and guarantees, letters of credit and
short term foreign currency relateansiactions, are not recognized in the annual financial
statements but are disclosed when, as a result of past events, it is highly likely that economic
benefits will flow to the bank, but this will only be confirmed by the occurrence- or non
occurrence ofroe o r more wuncertain future events wh
control.

Contingent liabilities include transaction related bonds and guarantees, letters of credit and short
term foreign currency related transactions. Contingent liabilities regnized in the annual

financial statements but are disclosed in the notes to the annual financial statements unless they
are remote.

3.13 Placements
The Bank has placement lines for its Bank counterparties. The lines cover the settlement risks
inherent in our activities with these counterparties. The limits are arrived at after conducting
fundamental analysis of the counterparties, presentation of findings to, and approval by the
Bankos Management Credit C o mymRigk tMan@agement h e i
Department/Unit.

3.4 Impairment and provisioning policies
3.1.1 Impaired loans and securities

Impaired loans and securities are loans and securities for which the bank determines that it is
probable that it will be unable to collect alhgial and interest due according to the
contractual terms of the loaseturities agreement(s). These are loans and securities specifically

i mpaired and are graded 8 to 10 in the bank?ad:

3.14.2 Past due but not impaird loans

Loans and securities where contractual interest or principal payments are past due but the bank
believes that impairment is not appropriate on the basis of the level of security / collateral
available and / or the stage of collection of amourgd tmathe bank.

3.14.3 Loans with renegotiated terms

Loans with renegotiated terms are loans that have been restructured due to deterioration in the
borrowerdés financi al position and where the
otherwise consideOnce the loan is restructured it remains in this category independent of
satisfactory performance after restructuring or as prescribed by the regulations.

3.14.4 Allowances for impairment

The bank establishes an allowance for impairment losseprésgnts its estimate of incurred

losses in its loan portfolio. The main components of this allowance are a specific loss
component that relates to individually significant exposures, and a collective loan loss allowance,
established for groups of homogeus assets in respect of losses that have been incurred but
have not been identified on loans subject to individual assessment for impairment.
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3.14.5 Write-off policy

The bank writes off a loan / security balance (and any related allowances for impairment losses)
whenManagemerredit Committee, with approval from the Board, determines that the loans

/ securities are uncollectible. This determination is regfthiedonsidering information such as

the occurrence of significant changes in the
borrower / issuer can no longer pay the obligation, or that proceeds from collateral will not be
sufficient to pay badke entire exposure. For smaller balances standardized loans, charge off
decisions are generally based on a product specific past due status.

3.5 Loans and advances

All loans and advances are categorized as follows:

1 Neither past due nor impaired:

These are loans and advances where contractual interest or principal payments are not
past due. These loans and advances belong to the investment grade (ratidg@jrades 1

9 Past due but not impaired:

These are loans and advances where contractual amtprastipal payments are past

due but individually assessed as not being impaired. The bank believes that impairment
is not appropriate on the basis of the level of receivable/security/collateral available
and/or the stage of collection of amounts owdti¢ bank.

1 Individually impaired:

Individually impaired are loans and advances for which the bank determines that it is
probable that it will be unable to collect all principal and interest due according to the
contractual terms of the loan/advance eagent(s). These are loans and advances
specifically impaired and are graded 8 t
system.

1 Collectively impaired:

Collectively impaired are portfolios of homogenous characteristics where contractual
interest o principal payments are not past due, but have been assessed for impairment
by the bank. E.g. Mortgage and loans given collectively to individual employee in public
and private institution.

3. Liquidity risk

The Bank®&s | i gui distisyrinmarlyshe respansilaility efrthe fireasupyrarac e s
Risk Managemebepartments

A brief overview of the bankds Iliquidity ma
following:

1. maintenance of minimum levels of liquid and marketable assetshabmgulatory
requirement of 15%. The Bank has also set for itself triogerst irhouse limits of
30% and above the regulatory requirement to which it gdheres
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3.17

2. monitoring of its cash flow and balance sheet trends. The Bank also makes forecasts of
anticipated deposits and withdrawals to determine their potential effect on;the Bank

3. regular measurement & monitoring of its liquidity position/ratios in line guithtozy
requirements and-house limits

regular monitoring of ne@arning assets
monitoring of deposit concentratjon

@sure diversification of funding sources
nonitoring of level of undrawn commitmerasd

© N o g s

naintaining a contyency funding plan.

0] Funding approach

The Bankds overall approach to funding is
1. Generationf large pool of low cost deposésd

2. Maintenancef efficiently diversifiedources of funds along prodiines, business

segments to avoidmozentration risk

The bank was able to meet all its financial commitments and obligations without any
liquidity risk exposure in thHast five yearqapart from that of CBL) The bankds
Management Asset and Liability Committee (ALCO) is charged wébpiasibility

of managing the bankds daily I|liquidity pc
and regular liquidity stress testing is conducted under a variety of scenarios covering
both normal and more severe market conditions.

All liquidity mlicies and procedures are subject to review and approval by Board
ALCO. The Board ALCO sets limits which are in conformity with the regulatory limits.
The limits are monitored regularly and exceptions are reported to the Board ALCO as
appropriate. In aditbn, gap reports are prepared monthly to measure the maturity
mismatches between assets and liabilities. The cumulative gap over total assets is not
expected to exceed 15%.

(i) Exposure to liquidity risk

The key measure used by the bank for managimity risk is the ratio of net liquid

assets to deposits from custonaes designated liabiliti€®r this purpose, net liquid

assets are considered as including cash and cash equivalents and investment grade debt
securities for which there is anvactind liquid market less any deposits from banks,

debt securities issued, other borrowings and commitments maturing within the next
month. A similar calculation is used to m
i mit est abl iaslregutorl§The Gertral Badlaof Libérig). | e

Settlement risk

The bankés activities may give rise to risk
Settlement risk is the risk of loss due to the failure of a company to honor its olibgations
deliver cash, securities or other assets as contractually agreed. For certain types of transactions
the bank mitigates this risk by conducting settlements through a settlement clearing agent to
ensure that a trade settled only when both partiesehfwlfilled their contractual settlement
obligations. Settlement limits form part of the credit approval / limit monitoring process
described earlier. Acceptance of settlement risk on free settlement trade requires transaction
specific or counterparty sgiecapprovals from Risk Management Department.
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3.18

3.19

Market risk

Market risk is the risk that changes in market prices, such as interest rate, equity gmices, forei
exchange rates and credit spreads (not rel a
standing) wil!/ affect the bankds income or t
objective of market risk management is to manage and owantket risk exposures within
acceptable parameters, while optimizing the return on risk.

(1) Managementof market risk

The bank separates its exposure to market risk between trading -tradingpn

portfolios. Trading portfolios are mainly held by thestlirgslanagement Department

and include positions arising from market making and proprietary position taking,
together with financial assets and liabilities that are managed on a fair value basis. With
the exception of t r ans ha invesinment iniits fereigar i si n
operations, all foreign exchange risks within the bank are monitoreldlfyapement

ALCO CommitteeAccordingly, the foreign exchange position is treated as part of the
bankds trading portf oles. Owrallfaotmorityr for snirketma n a g e
risk is vested in Management ALCO Committee.

However, they are also responsible for the development of detailed risk management
policies (subject to review and approval by the Board ALCO and for-thalaay
review of heir implementation.

(i) Exposure to market risksd trading portfolios

The principal tool used to measure and co
trading portfolios is the open position limits using the EaabRigk approach.

Specific limits(regulatory and 4ihouse) have been set across the various trading
portfolios to prevent undue exposure and the Treddanagement Department
ensures that these limits and triggers are adhered to by the bank.

Exposure to interest rate risld Trading and nontrading portfolios

The principal risk to which ndrading portfolios are exposed is the risk of loss from
fluctuations in the future cash flows or fair values of financial instruments because of a change
in market interest rates. Interest rateis managed principally through monitoring interest rate
gaps and by having gpproved limits for fpricing bands. The #LCO is the monitoring

body for compliance with these limits and is assisted by Risk Management-io-disyday
monitoring agvities.

A summary of the bankds i nt e-draliagportfohosieasgap p o
follows:

The Bank makes use of limit monitoring, earsiigsk, gap analyses and scenario analyses to
measure and control the market risk expesuitkin its trading and banking books.
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4.0

4.1

The bank also performs regular stress tests on its banking and trading books. In performing this,
the bank ensurethat there are quantitative criteria in building the scenarios. The bank
determines the effect of changes in interest rates on interest income; volatility in prices on
trading i ncome; and changes in funding sourc
potential risk exposures in the course of the year were successfully mitigated as mentioned
above.

0] Exposure to other market risk) non-trading portfolios (continued)

The management of interest rate risk against interest rate gap limits is supplemented b
monitoring the sensitivity of the bank?qd:
scenari os. Credit spread risk (not rel at
standing) on debt securities held by the bank and equity price risk is swgjelerto

monitoring by Management ALCO and the Risk Management Department, but is not
currently significant in relation to the overall results and financial position of the bank.
Interest rate movement affect reported equity in the following ways:

A Retaind earnings arising from increase or decrease in net interest
income and the fair value changes reported in profit or loss.

A Fair value reserves arising from increases or decreases in fair value of
financial instruments reported directly in other compiigbénsome.

Overall norrading interest rate risk positions are managed by Treasury, which uses
advances to banks and deposits from banks to manage the overall position arising from
t he b antiading activities. However, as at December 3@&,n20dignificant

interest rate changes occurred that impacted the bank.

Capital management and Other Risks
Regulatory capital

The bankds regulator, the Central Bank of Li
Bank. The banking opéom is directly supervised by the Central Bank of Liberia and other
regulatory authorities in the country.

In implementing current capital requirements, Central Bank of Liberia requires the Bank to
maintain a prescribed ratio of total capital to taflelie i ght ed asset s. The B
capital is analyzed into two tiers:

Tier 1 or Primary Capital: This includes ordinary share capital, share premium, retained
earnings, translation reserve and-aomtrolling interests after deductions for gobadwid

intangible assets, and other regulatory adjustments relating to items that are included in equity
but are treated differently for capital adequacy purposes.

Tier 2 or Secondary CapitalThisrepresents the secondangupplemental capital and it
consist othe following: fbrid (debt/equity} Capital Instruments and subordinated term debt
or loanstock ordebenture stock.

The Bank and its individually regulated operations have complied with all externally imposed
capital requirements throughtuh e peri od. There have been no
management of capital during the year.
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4.2  Capital adequacy ratio
The capital adequacy ratio isghe ot i en't of the capital base of

weighted asset base. In accordance with Central Bank of Liberia regulations, a minimum ratio of
10% is to be maiained as capital adequacy ratid as at December 31, 2016, the Liberian
Bankfo Devel opment and 2B.bhlweg a0i@deo) Computptiorsof t i1 on i
the capital adequacy ratio of the Bank is given below:
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Capital Adequacy Ratb Computation:
In Liberian Dollars
1. Tier 1 Capital 2017 2016
Paidin-Capital 388,228,26¢ 388,228,26¢
Share premium 140,958,544 140,958,544
Statutory capital 395,957,664 366,139,741
Retained Earnings 402,697,724 458,729,71¢€
Other distributable & Legal reserves 1,066,802,97: 803,007,28¢
2,394,649,74 2,157,063,5E
Deduction from Tier 1 Capital:
Intangibles 164,451,457 59,643,489
Treasury shares 5,254,643 5,254,643
Connected Lending of Capital Nature 90,961,248 28,925,910

Total qualifying Tier 1 Capital

2,133,977,82¢

2,063,239,51¢

2. Tier 2 Capital

Subordinated Term Debt

Qualifying Subordinated Term Debt (Limited to 50% of Tier :

1,818,055,77¢

1,269,557,97¢

1,066,988,91: 1,204,471,37:
Total Qualifyin@ier Two (2) Capital 1,066,988,91: 1,204,471,37:
Total Qualifying Capital (Qualifying Tier 1 + Qualifying Tier 2) 3,200,966,74C 3,141,771,29.
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on and off Balance sheet Exposures items
Total Aggregate GRalance Exposures Value of Risk Risk Effect of Amount Amount
Exposures Weighted Weighted CRM
value Without
CRM
Loans & Advances
11,014,535,16: 11,014,535,16: - - 11,014,535,16: 8,650,363,25:
Off Balance sheet Item
371,921,047 371,921,047 - - 371,921,047 431,159,59¢
Total Risk Weighted On & Off Balance Sheet
Items 11,386,456,21 9,081,522,84
Adjusted Capital Base/Total Risk Weighted On & Off Balance
Sheet Items 28.1 34.60
Regulatory Capital Adequacy Ratio
10.00 10.00
Surplus/(Deficit)
18.11 24.60
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4.3  Operational risk

LBDI defines Operati cantalonRi sRk sMara gaesmeontth ed 6dd
loss resulting from inadequate and/or failed internal processes, people, and systems or from
external event so. This definition requires

initiatives deployed insitpeople management, process engineering &mgjirreering,
technology investment and deployment, management of all regulatory responsibilities and
response to external threats.

To ensure a holistic framework is implemented, Operational Risk Manatyemmaanitors
Strategic and Reputational Risks from a broad perspective.

The following practices, tools and methodologies have been implemented for this purpose:

9 Loss Incident Reporting 8 An in-house developed manual Loss Incident Reporting
Systemis deapy ed t horough the Bankds I nternal
incidents banlvide. All staff members are encouraged to report operational risk
incidents that occur within their work places whether it crystallize into actual losses or
not. As a resylLBDI has collated Operation Risk loss data for five years. Information
gathered is used to identify risk concentrations and for appropriate operational risk
capital calculation.

1 Fraud Risk Managementinitiativesd Causal analysis of key fraud and feg&aends
identified in the Bank or prevalent in local and global business environments are carried
out and reported on a monthly basis. Likely and unlikely loss estimations are also
determined in the process as input in the Operation Risk capitaiicalpubcess. The
focus in Fraud Risk Management is to ensure that processes for preventing, deterring,
detecting fraud and forgeries incidents, and sanctioning offenders are effective.

9 Business Continuity Management (BCM)in line with BS 25999 StandaédTo
ensure the resilience of our business to any disruptive eventuality, the Bank has in place a
robust Business Continuity Plan (BCP) which assures timely resumption of its business
with minimal financial losses or reputational damage and contirsétyicé to its
customers, vendors and regulators. Desktop and UPS Walkthrough Tests are being
conducted banwide to ensure that recovery plans and processes are effective and that
all staff are aware of their roles and responsibilities when therkeiis &his plan is
reviewed monthly and when necessary, it is updated to ensure reliability and relevance of
information contained.

1 Information on Risk Management Awareness and Monitoringd Strategies for
ensuring the Confidentiality, Availability ané tr i t y o f al | t he Bal
assets (hardware, software, documents, backup media, etc.) are continuously reviewed
and key risks identified reported to key stakeholders. Where applicable, implementation
of controls by relevant stakeholders is edsk¢d and reported.

1 Compliance and Legal Risk Managemen® Compliance Risk Management involves
close monitoring of KYC compliance by the Bank, escalation of Audit Non
conf or mances, Compl aints Ma n a g etolezamde , and
cultuie for regulatory breaches.

It also entails an oversight role for monitoring adherence to regulatory guidelines and
global best practices on anrgming basis.
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Legal Risk Management involves the monitoring of litigations against the Bank to
ascertain likely financial or Agrancial loss exposures. It also involves conduct of
causal analysis on identified points of failure that occasioned these litigationé Medium
High risk factors identified are duly reported and escalated for appropriate treatment
where necessary.

1 Occupational Health and Safety procedures and initiatived Global best practices
for ensuring the health and safety of all staff, customersiatdaris s t o t he B
premises are advised, reported on to relevant stakeholders and monitored for
implementation. As a result, the following are conducted and monitored: Fire Risk
Assessment s, Burglaries and | njetwevieweds t hat
and evaluated for appropriateness.

5.0 Operational Risk Management Philosophy and Principles

51 Governance Structure

1 The Board through its Board Risk Management Committee (BRMC) oversees the
operational risk function in the Bank. It erstinat the Operation Risk policy is robust
and provides a framework on the Banko&s (
determi nes t he adequacy and compl etenes
measurement systems, assesses the adequacy of atds,mitigews and approves
contingency plans for Specific Risks and lays down the principles on how operational
risk incidents are to be identified, assessed, controlled, momitbredasured. The
BRMC reviews Operatidtisk Reports on a quarterly basis.

1 The Management Risk Committee monitors the activities of Operation Risk and
approves key decisions made before presentation to the Board. It ensures the
implementation of the guiding Operation Risk frameworkviidek and ensures that
all departments ithhe Bank are fully aware of the risks embedded in respective process
flows and business activities.

9 All process owners are responsible for theoddgy management of &ationRisks
prevalent inheirrespective departments, Sections, Units, BrarficthesBank.

1 The Internal Audit Departmeadnducts independent reviews on the implementation of
Operation Risk Policies and Procedures-\vatek

6.0 Approaches to Managing Operation Risk
1 The Bank adopts operational risk procedures and practicesg¢hataf i t f or purp

will increase the efficiency and effectiveness of the bank’s resources, minimize losses and
utilize opportunities.

9 This outlook embeds Operation Risk practices in the bankis-d#gy business
activities.

6.1 Principles

9 Operaional risks inherent in all products, activities, processes and systems are assessed
periodically for timely identification of new risks and trending of prevalent risks.
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1 TheBank ensures that before any new products, processes, activities and systems are
introduced or undertaken, the operational risks inherent are assessed and likely plan put
in place to mitigate the risks.

1 In accordance with this, the Bank ersuegular monitoring of its operational risk
profile and material exposure to losses.

9 Pertinent information is reported regularly to Senior Management and the Board to
ensure proactive management of operational risk.

T I'n addition toeshi €ontheuBapkBPbaBusesuhl ine
for contingency and business continuity plans to ensure its ability to operate on an
ongoing basis and limit losses in the event of severe business disruption.

6.2  Treatment of Operational Risks

1 The Qperation Risk identification and assessment process provides a guide on the
decisiormaking process for the extent and nature of risk treatment to be employed by
the Bank. In line with best practices, the cost of risk treatments introduced must not
exceedhe reward.

1 The following comprise the Operation Risk treatments adopted by the Bank:

- Risk Acceptance and ReductionThe Bank accepts the risk because the reward of
engaging in the business activity far outweighs the cost of mitigating the risk.
Residualisks retained by the business after deploying suitable mitigants are accepted

- Risk Transfer (Insurance):This involves another party or parties bearing the risk,
by mutual consent. Relationships are guided by the use of contracts and insurance
arrangentgs

- Risk Sharing (Outsourcing):Risk is shared with other parties that provide expert
solutions required to mitigate risk or reduce risk burden whether operationally or
financially

- Risk Avoidance:Requires discontinuance of the business activitywbsitrige to
the risk

7.0  Strategy Risk Management

Strategic Risk Management is the process for identifying, assessing and managing risks and
uncertainties, affected by internal and exte
ability toachieve its strategy and strategic objectives with the ultimate goal of creating and
protecting shareholder and stakeholder value.

I n LBDI , it is also regarded as the possibil
support its longerm corpoate goals due to the inadequacy of its strategic planning and/or
decisiormaking process or the inadequate implementation of such strategies. This could include
the risk that the strategy is unclear, clear but not viable or clear and viable but badly
implemented, or strategy failure due to unexpected circumstances.
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7.1

7.2

A specialized process is in place for monitoring and tracking Strategic Risk and tracking key
activites designed or defined by the Bank to achieve its strategic intent in the short, medium and
long term.

One of such process is the Monthly Performance Review process in which actual performance is
revievedagainst planned performance.

Reputational Rsk Management

The bank regularly reviews its policies and procedures for safeguarding against reputational risk.
This is an evolutionary process which takes account of relevant developments, industry guidance,
best practices and societal expectations.

Asan indigenous Liberian bank which has survived over the year, LBDI has always aspired to the
highest standards of conduct and, as a matter of routine, take account of reputational risks to its
business. Reputational risks can arise from a wide varétyest As a banking concern, good
reputation depends not only upon the way in which we conduct our business, but also by the way
in which clients, to whom we provide financial services, conduct themselves.

Functions with responsibility for activities tittact reputational risk are represented at the
Bankds Executive Management Committee (EMC)
Officer of the Bank. In addition to the primary role of the EMC, it is also mandated to consider
areas and actiefi presenting significant reputational risk and, where appropriate, to make
recommendations to the Board of Directors for a policy or procedural changes to mitigate such
risk.

Standards on all major aspects of business are set for LBDI and for irlisittlzds,
businesses units and functions. Reputational risks, including environmental, social and
governance matters, are considered and assessed by the Board, the Risk Management committee,
Board committees and senior management through the EMC dufimigniiiation of policy

and the establishment of standards. These policies, which form an integral part of the internal
control system, are communicated through manuals and statements of policy and are
promulgated through internal communications and gainin The pol i ci es set o
appetite and operational procedures in all areas of reputational risk, including money laundering
deterrence, count&rrorist financing, environmental impact, -lamiibery and corruption

measures and employee imiat The policy manuals address risk issues in detail,- and co
operation between departments and businesses is required to ensure a strong adherence to its risk
management system and sustainability practices.

Capital allocation

The allocation of cépl between specific operations and activities is, to a large extent, driven by
optimization of the return achieved on the capital allocated. The amount of capital allocated to
each operation or activity is based primarily upon the regulatory capitedping cases the
regulatory requirements do not reflect fully the varying degree of risk associated with different
activities.

In such cases the capital requirements may be flexed to reflect differing risk profiles, subject to
the overall level of cagitto support a particular operation or activity not falling below the
minimum required for regulatory purposes. The process of allocating capital to specific
operations and activities is undertaken independently of those responsible for the operation, by
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the bank §i nance Department, and is subject to r
Liability Committee as appropriate.

Although maximization of the returm eiskadjusted capital is the principal basis used in
determining how capital is allocated within the bank to particular operations or activities, it is not
the sole basis used for decision making. Account also is taken of synergies with other operations
and activities, the availability of management and other resources, and the fit of the activity with
the bankdés | onger term strategic objectives.
and allocation are reviewed regularly by the Boardzofdpsr.

8.0 Key sources of estimation uncertainty
Allowances for credit losses

Assets accounted for at amortized cost are evaluated for impairment on a basis described in
accounting policg.9.1

The specific counterparty component of the total all®saor impairment applies to claims
evaluated individually for i mpair ment and i ¢
present value of the cash flows that are expected to be received. In estimating these cash flows,
management makes judgmentstaboa counter partyds financi al
value of any underlying collateral.

Each impaired asset is assessed on its merits, and the workout strategy and estimate of cash
flows considered recoverable are independently approve€sdih®isk function.

Collectively assessed impairment allowances cover credit losses inherent in portfolios of loans
and advances and held to maturity investment securities with similar economic characteristics
when there is objective evidence to stugiggsthey contain impaired loans and advances and

held to maturity investment securities, but the individual impaired items cannot yet be identified.
A component of collectively assessed allowances is for country risks. In assessing the need for
collecive loan loss allowances, management considers factors such as credit quality, portfolio
size, concentrations, and economic factors. In order to estimate the required allowance,
assumptions are made to define the way inherent losses are modeled amtine ihete

required input parameters, based on historical experience and current economic conditions.

The accuracy of the allowances depends on how well future cash flows for specific counterparty
allowances and the model assumptions and parametersiassmhiming collective allowances
are estimated.

Determining fair values

The determination of fair value for financial assets and liabilities for which there is no observable
market price requires the use of valuation techniqdesca®ed in accoumg policy 2.6 For

financial instruments that trade infrequently and have little price transparency, fair value is less
objective, and requires varying degrees of judgment depending on liquidity, concentration,
uncertainty of market factors, pricing aggiems and other risks affecting the specific

instrument.
Critical accounting judgments in applying th
Critical accounting judgments made in applyi
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Depreciation and carrying value of property and equipment

The estimation of the wuseful Il ives of assets
adjustment to the estimated useful livesrokitef property and equipment will have an impact
on the carrying value of these items.

Determination of impairment of property and equipment, and intangible assets

Management is required to make judgments concerning the cause, timing and amount of
impaiment. In the identification of impairment indicators, management considers the impact of
changes in current competitive conditions, cost of capital, availability of funding, technological
obsolescence, discontinuance of services and other circumstdncesldhmdicate that

impairment exists. The bank applies the impairment assessment to its separate cash generating
units. This requires management to make significant judgments and estimates concerning the
existence of impairment indicators, separategesm&nating units, remaining useful lives of
assets, projected cash flows and net real i za
when assessing whether a previously recognized impairment loss should be reversed.

Impairment of Held-to-Maturity i nvestments(Treasury bills)

The bank determines that Treasury bills investments are impaired when there has been a
significant or prolonged decline in the fair value below cost. This determination of what is
significant or prolonged requires judgmentaking this judgment, the bank evaluates among
other factors, the volatility in the price of treasury bills. In addition, objective evidence of
impairment may be deterioration in the financial health of the investee, in this case, political
instability irthe country and financing cash flows.

Valuation of financial instruments

The bankds accounting policy on Z9dir value m

The bank measures fair values using the following hierarchy of methods.
Level 1:Quoted markeprice in an active market for an identical instrument.

Level 2:Valuation techniques based on observable inputs. This category includes instruments
valued using: quoted market prices in active markets for similar instruments; quoted prices for
similar mstruments in markets that are considered less than active; or other valuation techniques
where all significant inputs are directly or indirectly observable from market data.

Level 3: This includes financial instruments, the valuation of which incorpigrafecant

inputs for the asset or liability that is not based on observable market date (unobservable inputs).
Unobservable inputs are those not readily available in an active market due to market illiquidity
or complexity of the product. These inpuesgeenerally determined based on inputs of a similar
nature, historic observations on the level of the input or analytical techniques.

This category includes loans and advances to banks and customers, investment securities,
deposits from banks and cusérs) debt securities and other borrowed funds.

Accounting classification measurement basis and fair values

Financial instruments at fair value (including loans and gidse maturity (Treasury biltse

either priced with reference to a quoted ebgmlice for that instrument or by using a valuation
model. Where the fair value is calculated using a valuation model, the methodology is to
calculate the expected cash flows under the terms of each specific contract, where applicable,
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Notes to the finarcial statements(continued)
Significant accounting policies (continued)

and then discount these values back to a present value. The expected cash flows for each
contract are determined either directly by reference to actual cash flows implicit imeobservab
market prices or through modeling cash flows using appropréateiafirmarkets pricing

models.

Financial instruments at fair value (including those held for trading, designated at fair value,
derivatives and availafde-sale) are either priced widlierence to a quoted market price for

that instrument or by using a valuation model. Where the fair value is calculated using a
valuation model, the methodology is to calculate the expected cash flows under the terms of
each specific contract and thestdiint these values back to a present value. The expected cash
flows for each contract are determined either directly by reference to actual cash flows implicit in
observable market prices or through modeling cash flows using appropriate finansial market
pricing models. Wherever possible these models use as their basis observable market prices and

rates including, for example, interest rate yield curves, equities and prices.

9 Interestincome
3:Dec-2017 3:Dec-2016
In Liberian dolles
Loans and advances to custom 742,108,538 675,122,241
Cash and Cash equivalent - -
742,108,53¢€ 675,122,241
Geographical location
Interest income earned in Liber 742,108,53¢ 675,122,241
Interest income earned outside Liberia - -
742,108638 675,122,241
10 Interest expense
3%tDec-2017 31Dec-2016
In Liberian dollars
Savings account individuals 91,410,828 78,109,032
Savings account joint in trust for 7,338 ,945
Savings account in trust for 2,112,696 1,447,705
Savings account not for profit 13,168,173 11,210,397
Savings account joint 10,946,711 9,780,650
Savings account staff 1,095,341 874,008
Savings account non resident 2,132,509 1,596,993
Savings account clubs & associations 5,856,244 4,692,427
Savings direct deposit 3,000,201 2,056,238
Interest on time deposit 20,839,098 45,804,579
Short term borrowing 40,035,260 1,498,337

190,604,39¢

157,080,35<
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Fee and commission income
3:Dec-2017 31kDec-2016
In Liberian dollars
Fees and commissions on loan and advances 45,464,219 63,252,667
Commission on MoneyGram operations 57,074,591 43,365,375
Commission on Western Union operations 18,544,092 22,949,865
Commission on transfers and drafts 145,480,47C 104,677,54¢€
Service charges on customer deposits 99,873,494 118,556,87¢
Commission on guarantees and bonds 4,666,472 3,350,418
Other commission and fees 143,562,154 93,916,673
514,665,492 450,069,424
Other operating
income
31:Dec-2017 31Dec-2016
In Liberian dollars
Income on
GOL/Bond 237,956,898 103,694,37¢
Income on call
deposits 174,601 95,386
Other 82,362,191 49,020,308
Rental income 58,090,870 46,986,594
434,567,776 212,024,582
Personnel expense
3kDec-2017 31kDec-2016
In Liberian dollars
Wages and salaries 4 451,556 4,274,098
Housing and transportatiallowance 281,231,75C 223,075,02¢
Contributions to defined contribution
plans 121,353,761 86,560,852
Other staff cost 142,347,73& 106,006,822
549,384,802 419,916,80:

-
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14 Generd and administrative expenses 31Dec-2017 31Dec-2016
In Liberian dollars
Other premises and equipment costs 128,450,957 92,788,602
Directors' emoluments 35,626,740 22,087,943
Professional saces 109,938,368 76,253,877
Office expenses 65,577,304 63,937,748
Licenses and fees 54,219,893 51,104,300
Operational expensewestment
property 35,221 106,594
Foreign travel 22,173,526 11,162,922
Local travel & transportation 33,809,690 10,650,096
Bank service and note import charge: 7,764,054 2,203,449
Advertising and business promotion 21,086,595 15,195,855
Amortization of intangibles 24,64,947 20,017,668
Depreciation of Property, Plant and
Equipment 67,301,416 74,399,037
570,658,711 430,323,091
Other Operating expenses 31Dec-2017 31Dec-2016
In Liberian dollars
Scholarships and donations 6,636,277 21,026,753
Sundry expenses 49,323,737 39,290,823
Fines by CBL 8,782,071 -
Treasury Operations 67,774,316 -
Other/Cash short and over (1,922,38) (5,318,189)
130,593,863 64,584,387

-

Fine ofUS$76,921 (LRD 8,782,pWhsleviedby CBL for violation of Reserve Requirement
Regulation CBL/RSD/003/2016.

16

Cash and cash equivalents

In Liberian dollars

Cash and balances with banks
Unrestricted balances wiithnks

3kDec-2017 31Dec-2016
773,485,58< 539,039,677
1,183,302,487 1,470,500,12:

1,956,788,07C 2,009,539,79¢
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17 Investment in securities & ohers

17.1. Availabldor-sale
The bank acquideshares in Liberia Cement Corporatio2016 of LD$ 84,793,79¢or resale to
Liberians. The b&ndesignated the shares as avaftabsale investment securities as at Dec. 31,
20717. However the bank stiiaintains the shares bought in 2014/2015 in their books.

17.2Treasurybills
During the year, the bank acquired treasungshfrom both the ®/ernment of Liberia and
Central Bank.

Investment in securities & others

3xDec-2017 3:Dec-2016
In Liberian dollars
Investment securities
Held to- maturity

GOL - -

CBL - -
Other investments
Available for sale 140,583,342 84,793,796
Investment in Treasury Bond 1,177,081,79: 1,177,081,79:
Equity investment 24,986,486 24,986,486
Investment in Bond&OL 253,630,90C 208,691,34¢
Investment in syndicated loan 78,237,495 112,656,247

1,674,520,02(

1,608,209,67:

18 Loans and Advances to Customers

3:Dec-2017

In Liberian Gross Portfolio Total Carrying

Dollars Amount Impairment Impairment Amount

Loans to non

individuals 8,245,689,24" (319,866,132 (319,866,132  7,925,823,11:

Loans to

individuals 3,088,712,05( - - 3,088,712,05(
11,334,401,29 (319,866,132 (319,866,132° 11,014,535,16

3tDec-2016

In Liberian Gross Portfolio Total Carrying

dollars amount Impairment Impairment amount

Loansto non

individuals 6,114,312,68¢ (282,582,610 (282,582,630  5,831,730,07¢

Loans to

individuals 2,818,633,17- - - 2,818,633,17

8,932945,862

(282,582,630

(282,582,630

8,650,38,252
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Report nan

Performance Profile of Loans and Advances per CBL Prudential Guidelines Is As Followrs (
Liberian Dollars):

% %

Total Total Provision % Total
Status Count Count Value Value Amount Prov.
10 CURRENT 2,819 15.9% 8,448,930,527 78.9% 84,489,305 5.04%
20 OLEM 94 0.5% 22,011,215 0.2% 1,100,561 0.07%
Total Performing 2,913 16.5% 8,470,941,74z 79.1% 85,589,866 5.11%
3-SUBSTANDARD 1,021 5.8% 706,592,822 6.6% 141,318,564 8.43%
4 - DOUBTFUL 3,454 19.5% 163,370,32¢ 1.5% 81,685,164 4.87%
50 L0OSS 10,303 58.2% 1,367,511,82* 12.8% 1,367,511,82¢ 81.59%
Total NPL 14,778 83.5% 2,237,474,975 20.9% 1,590,515,55: 94.89%
Total Performing &
NPL 17,691 100.0% 10,708,416,71 100.0% 1,676,105,41! 100%

Sensitivity Analysis on ecognition of provision based
Accounting and Financial Reporting for Banks.

on CBL Guidelines Concerning

Provision
Provision Provision Net provision Impact on impact on Impact on
Year | CBL Guidelines IFRS impact Capital P&L Profit
2017 1,676,105,41y 399,788,274 1,276,317,141 2,389,390,53] (1,162,780,458] (1,162,780,458
2016 1,808,066,584 282,582,61( 1,525,483,974 2,124,808,91] (1,354,998,98 | (1,354,998,589
Net (131,961,165 117,205,664 (249,166,827 2,140,223,704 (192,218,131) | (192,218,131)
N/S  SECTORIAL CLASSIFICATION OF LOANS & ADVANCES:
SECTOR 3tDec-17 3tDec-16
1 AGRICULTURE LRD LRD
Fishery 6,469,177 4,889,677
Rubber 195,920,612 148,085,062
Others 50,499,645 38,169,761
252,889,434 191,144,50(
2 CONSTRUCTION
Commercial mortgage 996,505,37€ 753,200,751
Home mortgage 236,585,47¢& 178,821,272
Road construction 2,514,795,21¢ 1,925,901,65!
Other construction 49,394,034 37,334,092
3,797,280,10: 2,895,257,76€
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3xDec-17 3:Dec-16
LRD LRD
3 COMMUNICATION 205,360,582 155,220,18!
4 SERVICES
Hotels 75,757,961 57,261,058
Bar & restaurant 89,751,327 67,837,835
Other services 451,958,57¢ 341,609,337
617,467,86€ 466,708,231
5 EXTRACTIVE
Iron ore - -
Diamond - -
Gold - -
Quarrying - -
Forestry 123,132,45¢E 93,068,698
123,132,45¢ 93,068,698
6 OTHERS
Manufacturing 130,264,40C 98,459,322
Trade 3,926,304,14¢ 2,967,666,11(
Personal 688,828,207 520,645,382
Government of Liberia 500,902 378,603
Central bank - -
Public corporation 7,152,883 5,406,450
General 1,265,354,18¢ 956,408,008

6,018,404,72¢

4,848,963,87¢

TOTAL SUMMARY LOANS

11,014,535,16

8,650,363,252

19 Other current assets

31Dec-2017 31-Dec2016
In Liberian dollars
Accounts receivabl 3,470,351,55: 1,527,115,58
Prepayments 189,691,14¢ 155,378,01¢
Deferred expenseadvances & softwar 135,707,47& 152,189,20¢
Restricted deposits with Central bank 1,702,495,08¢ 1,621,49,112
Stock/Stationery 141,992,78¢€ 120,360,704

5,640,202,04<

3,576,792,627
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20. Investment properties

Investment Properties have been measured at fair value in the statement gidsiamiciahd are
categorized by levels according to the inputs used in the market measurement

Investment properties
Sgnificant
other Significant
Current valued

Dec. 17 prices observable  unobservable
for identical
properties Inputs I nputs
Level 1 Level 2 Level3
LRD LRD LRD LRD
Investment Properties
E.E. Saleeby
Property/Buildings 745,500,00C 745,500,00C - 745,500,00C
Total 745,500,000 745,500,000 - 745,500,000

Fair value for Investment properties are calculated usireyahetiormethod which results in the
measurement being classified as level 1 in the faiakievniaarchy

Stabilized NOI:

Revenue less any property operating expenses adjusted for item such as any lease #proosts, long
vacancy rate, ngrecoverable capital expenditures, management fees;lsteaights and other non
recurring costs.

Investment properties are valued on a highest and best use basis. For the Bank's investment properties,
the current use is considered the highest and beSintse2013, the property has been recorded at
market valued.

21 Intangible assets

3kDec-2017 3kDec-2016

In Liberian dollars

Cost:

Balance at beginning of the year
Addition
Exchange rateffect

178,844,093
113,851,914
43,863,838

150,990,27¢
5,400,445
22,453,373

336,559,88¢

178,844,09:

Accumulated amortization:

Balance at beginning of the year 119,200,604 83,750,257
Amortizatia for the year 24,674,947 20,017,668
Exchange rate effect 28,232,881 15,432,679

172,108,432 119,200,604
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Carrying amounts 164,451,457 59,643,489

22 Net Book Value of PropertyPlant and Equipment (see page 94 1,320,543,297
23 Deposits from customers
31Dec-2017 31Dec-2016

In Liberian dollars
Term deposits 22,565,918 16,147,079
Current deposits 5,717,675,22¢ 4,975,176,39]
Savings deposits 8,050,217,68¢ 6,433,054,95¢

13,790,458,83: 11,424,378,43

24 Due to Central Bank & EBID

Due to Central Bank
3%:Dec-2017 31Dec-2016
In Liberian dollars

Long term deb€BL Mortgage loan 1,281,530,00( 798,500,00C
Accrued interest payable general 7,794 7,794
Long term debCBL rubber stimulus fund 267,448,00C 221,050,00C
Small business development funds 1,000,000 1,000,000

1,549,985,79¢ 1,020,557,79¢

Due to EBID

Long term debBECOWAS banks for Investment & Developmer 268,069,98C 221015,655

1,818,055,77¢  1,241,573,44¢

241 During the yeannder review, the Bank received US$1,500,000 at 2% for period of two years from CBL
to support ongoing Micro Small and Medium Enterprise Rural Finanéb®asRecovery Bext.
Interest shall be made on quarterly basis.

In November 2012, the CBL again provided additional US$ 7 million and L$ 217.5 P8ilfon e

purpose of intermediation through ldagn affordable mortgage loans to Liberian Natioisdsataa

total servicing cost (interest, fees and other charges) not exceeding eight percent (8%) per annum. The
placement is for ten (10) years repayable in full on November 14, 2022. Interest payment shall be made
on a quarterly basis and at maturigy;réfmaining interest plus principal shall be made via debit to the
relevant LBDI account at the CBL.
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25  Other Liabilities 31Dec-2017 31Dec-2016

In Liberian dollars

Accounts payable 2,707,997,63¢ 2,482,828,81¢

Stort term borrowing 1,431,520,99 -
Dividend payable 106,923,092 164,304,572
Provision for employet

benefits 226,079,22¢ 162,983,784
Accrued interest on customer

deposits 88,046,106 37,102,504
Unearned fees and

commission 41,264,144 8,576,298
Current income tax

liabilities 1,665,361 1,879,659

4,603,496,567 2,857,675,63€

26 Paid-in 0 Capital

3tDec-2017 3tDec-2016
Share Capital
Class A Common stock $10 par value
(Authorized 1,000,000 shares)
Issued and outstanding at beginning of4z3653%hares 219,991,038 219,991,03¢
Issued during the year - -
Issuedand outstanding at end of year 422,653
shares 219,991,03¢ 219,991,03¢
Class B Common stock $10 par value
(Authorized 1,000,000 shares)
Issued and outstanding at beginning of343i7 7 Ehares 168,237,231 168,237,231
Issued during the year - -
Issued and outstanding at end of yee849,77Ehares 168,237,231 168,237,231
Total Share Capital 388,228,269 388,228,269
Paid- in Capital in excess &far 140,958,544 140,958,544
Paid - in Capital 529,186,81: 529,186,81:
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22 PROPERTY,PLANT AND
EQUIPMENT -In Liberian Dollar
Land & Leasehold Furniture & Misc.
Descriptions Buildings Improvement  Equipment fixtures Vehicles  Properties Work in progress Total
Cost: LRD LRD LRD LRD LRD LRD LRD LRD
Balance at Jamyel, 2016 560,455,428 180,930,598 380,868,134 63,241,765 81,823,692 3,928,696 18,027,908 1,289,276,221
Additions during the year 79,870,572 46,705,763 3,197,007 158,108 872,471 3,621 33,863,759 164,671,301
Disposals during the year - - (973,500) - - - - (973,500)
Effect of Exchange rate  (28,621,617) 2,180,074 82,427,609 7,794,526 24,620,218 320,857 (10,384,218) 78,337,449
Balance at December
31, 2016 611,704,383 229,816,435 465,519,250 71,194,399 107,316,381 4,253,174 41,507,449 1,531,311,47
Balance at January 1, 20. 611,704,383 229,816,435 465,59,250 71,194,399 107,316,381 4,253,174 41,507,449 1,531,311,471
Additions during the year - - 65,299,527 4,469,865 25,091,413 2,008,932 92,715,944 189,585,682
Disposals during theear - - - - - - - -
Transfers - - (96,869,738) (96,869,738)
Effect of Exchange rate 267,702,737 61,718,419 99,835,237 15,294,937 23,109,488 910,871 3,544,370 472,116,059
Balance at December
31, 2017 879,407,120 291,534,854 630,654,014 90,959,201 155,517,282 7,172,977 40,898,026 2,096,143,47¢
Depreciation:
Balance at January 1, 20 - 72,298,694 253,480,318 27,567,800 57,167,702 3,495,038 - 414,009,551
Charge for the year - 17,317,131 40,030,998 5,717,206 11,312,269 21,432 - 74,399,037
Disposals durgnthe year - 2,054,115 39,303,800 1,143,753 2,624,107 217,171 - 45,342,946
Effect of Exchange rate - - (827,654) - - - - (827,654)
Balance at December
31, 2016 - 91,669,940 331,987,462 34,428,758  71104,078 3,733,641 - 532,923,880
532,923,880
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Balance at January 1, 20: - 91,669,940 331,987,462 34,428,758 71,104,078 3,733,641 -
Charge for the yea - 6,189,155 36,255,059 7,025,353 17,582,306 249,544 - 67,301,416
Effect of Exchange rate - 63,511,857 87,563,874 11,275,700 12,067,222 956,226 - 175,374,880
Disposals during the year - - - - - - - -
Balance at December
31, 2017 - 161,370,952 455,806,395 52,729,812 100,753,60 4,939,411 - 775,600,177
Net book value:
As at December 31, 201€ 611,704,383 138,146,495 133,531,78¢ 36,765,641 36,212,303 519,533 41,507,449 998,387,591
As at December 31, 2017 879,407,120 130,163,902 174,847,61¢ 38,229,389 54,763,676 2,233,566 40,898,02 1,320,543,297
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27a StatutoryReserve

Section 1001 of the bankds charter iragaiabléefores t ha
dividends, the bank shall set aside in each year in a special reserve fund a sum equal to not less than 25%
of the net profit of the bank as shown in the b
of that amounts so saside equals the amount of the loans to the bank then outstanding. In addition to
amounts set aside as special reserve, the Directors shall set aside from any profits otherwise available for
the payments of dividends such other reserves as they deant prude

27 Revaluation Reserve
3:Dec-2017 31Dec-2016

450,695,941 450,695,941

The bank exercised an option to fair value all buildings it owned at the date of transition to market value
from the portfolio of fixed assets on its books including investment properties. The impact of the fair
valuation was an increased in the value of the assets. The bank has reclassified the surplus to a
Revaluatiosurplusaccount.

28 Credit Risk Reserve

The credit risk reserve warehouses the difference between the impairment on loans and advances
determined using the Central Bank of Liberia prudential guidelines, compared with the incurred loss
model used in determining the impairment loss under IFRSs.

Movement in Credit 3:Dec-2017 31tDec-2016
Risk Reserve

Opening balance - 392,052,257
Transfer to retained
earnings - (392,052,257

Balance at year end - -

Where the loan loss impairment determined using the Central Bank of@Btgpaudential guidelines

is higher than the loan loss impairmergrdéhed using the incurred loss model under PRS0

2016 the differencavastransferred to credit risk reserve and the reverse case is also a direct application
to income statemenn 2016 the balance in the Credit Risk Reserve was movednede@ning based

on new CBL prudential guideline CBL/RSD/0864/2016 effective July 28 2016

Thereafter, the same guideline requires the Bank not to make adjustment in it book for such difference

but rather to show the impact on capital and profit ifi@phairment model was aborted using sahsitiv
analysis as done in pagef@is financial statements.
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28bTranslation Adjustment

Monetary-Nonmonetary Method
ltems Balances held in C;?E'Zi F;alte Translated | Historical | Balance sheet Tanslation
Foreign Currrency | Amount Rate Amount )

2017 difference
Investments 3973784 12519 497438224 69.10 274,600,253 (222,837,97
Investment property 9000000 12518 1126620000 82.83 745,500,000 (381,120,00
Intangible assets 581,888  125.18 72,840,768 10250 59,643,489 (13,197,217
Property and equipment 11200810 12514 1,402,117,396 117.90 1320543291 (81,574,09
Due to Central Bank & EBID 7840828 12519 98151486  95.60 749,601,041 231,913 82
Share capital 7,124.24 125194 966,920,368  50.26 388,228,269 578,692,09
Share Premium 2442754 12518  305,78394p  57.701 140,958,544 164,825,40
Statutory Reserves 3330758 12519  416,94362p 11845 394523913 241911
Revaluation Surplus 6111287 12518 76501090y  73.75 450,695,941 314,314.96
Treasury stock 63,309 125.18 7925021 8300 5254,643 2,670,37
Total 52,269,653 6,543,115,109 4529549390  616,107,03

The assets and liabilities of the Bank are translated using the closing rate of L$125.18 at as December 31,
2017. This include the acquisition of foreign transactions (Investment, Property Plan Equipment, Long
Term Debt & Equity) in various currencies (USD, EUR & GBP) were translated using historical rates
thereby resulting into a difference as shown on theofabe statement of financial position called
0OTransl ation Adjustmento6 otherwise known as Tr at

During the year under review, 2017, the bank opening rate of its statement of financial position was

quoted as L$103 to US$1 with aictpsate at L$125.18 which shows a devaluation of the Liberian
Dollars against the United States Dollars by 21%.
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29 Contingencies

29.1 Claims and Litigation

The bak has contingent liabilitiesrespect of legal claim arisindhe ordinary course of business as

at December 31, 2ZD1lt is not anticipated that any material liability will arise from the contingent
liabilities.

29.2 Contingent Liabilities and Commitments

In common with other banks, the bank conducts lssingolving acceptances, performance bonds

and indemnities. The majority of these facilities are offset by corresponding obligations of third parties.
Contingent liabties and commitments comprise acceptances, guaranties and letters of credit.

29.3 Commitments for capital expenditure

The bank had no commitments for capital expenditure as at Decembét (2D 20Nil)

30 Related Parties

Parties are considered to be related if one party has the ability to control the other party or exercise
influence over the other party in making financial and operational decisions, or one other party controls
both.

31.Subsequent events review

Events subsequent to the balance sheet date are reflected only to the extent that they a¥® material.
such evetscame to our attenticas at the date the financial statements were signed.

Transactions with Executive Directors and Key Management Personnel

Key management personnel are defined as those persons having authority and responsibility for
planning, di&cting and controlling the activities of LBDI (directly or indirectly) and comprise the
Director and senior management of the bank. There were no material transactions with companies in

which Directors or other members of key management personnel (mmaayet! persons) are related

Remunerations of Executive Directors and Other Key Management Personnel are as follows:

3kDec-2017 3E:Dec-2016

In Liberian dollars
Salaries and other short term benefits 43,087,891 30829,500
Contributions to defined contribution plar 645,710 533,929
43,733,601 31,363,429
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DISCLOSURES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Currency Risk Exposure relating to on balance sheassets are as follows:
Dec-17
In Liberian Dollars
Classification TOTAL LRD usD GBP EUR
Cash and cash equivalents 1,956,788,07( 510,400580 1,444,398,55¢ 671,433 1,317,503
Financial assets held for tradir - - - - -
Investment securities:
- Available for sale 140,583,342 - 140,583,342 - -
- Held to maturity - - - - -
Loans and Advances to
Customers 11,014,535,16: 881,233,421 10,133,30,742 - -
Property, plant and equipment 1,320,543,297 18,021,954 1,302,521,34: - -
Intangible assets 164,451,457 - 164,451,457 - -
Other assets 5,640,202,04% 1,692,060,614 3,948,141,431 - -
20,237,103,37¢ 3,101,716,56¢ 17,133,397,86¢ 671,433 1,317,58

Deposits from banks
Deposits from customers
Due to central bank & EBID

Other liabilities

13,790,458,83:
1,818,055,77¢

4,603,496,56

4,014,359,632
432,386,864

1,129,093,251

9,776,099,20C
1,385,668,91C

3,474,403,31¢

20,212,011,17:

5,575,839,747

14,636,171,42¢
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Currency Risk Exposure relating to on balance sheet assets are as follows:
Dec-16
In Liberian Dollars
Classification TOTAL LRD USD GBP EUR
Cash and cash equivalents 2,009,539,79¢ 485,840,830 1,476,476,30z 82,902 47,139,764
Financial assets held for tradin - - - - -
Investment securities: - - - - -
- Available for sale 84,793,796 - 84,793,796 - -
- Held to maturity - - - - -
Loans and Advances to
Customers 8,650,363,252 797,372,354 7,852,990,897 - -
Propertyplant and equipment 998,387,591 13,316,115 985,071,476 - -
Intangible assets 59,643,489 - 59,643,438 - -
Current income tax assets - - - - -
Other assets 3,576,792,627 1,473,745,76¢ 2,103,046,861 - -
15,379,520,55: 2,770,275,064 12,562,022,82: 82,902 47,139,764

Deposits from banks
Deposits from customers
Due to central bank

Due to Intercompany
Current income tax liabilities
Deferred tax liabilities

Other liabilities

11,424,378,43]

1,241,573,44¢

2,857,675,63¢

3,062,603,582

432,386,864

104,983,421

8,361,774,84¢

809,186,585

2,752,892,851

15,523,627,51¢

3,599,973,867

11,923,854,28¢
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Currency Risk Exposure relating to on balance sheet asset® n:t 6 d
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS
Dec-17

TOTAL LRD USD GBP EUR
Cash and balances with
banks 773,485,583  190343,580 581,153,067 671,433 1,317,503
Unrestricted balances with
Central bank 857,107,704 184,224,947 672,882,757 - -
Balances whtforeign banks 326,194,783 - 324,694,093 575,250 925,440
Total 1,956,788,07C 374,568,527 1,578,729,917 1,246,683 2,242,983
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS
Dec-16

TOTAL LRD USD GBP EUR
Cash and balances with
banks 539,039,677 128,823,514 362,993,497 82,902 47,139,764
Unrestricted dlances with
Central bank 930,104,951 353,213,803 576,891,148 - -
Balances with foreign bank 540,395,170 - 489,524,728 115,233 50,755,209
Total 2,009,539,798 482,037,317 1,429,409,373 198,135 97,894,973
INVESTMENT
SECURITY
Dec-17

TOTAL LRD USD GBP EUR
GOL Treasury bills - - - - -
CBL Treasury bills - - - - -
Government bond 253,630,900 - 253,630,900 - -
Total 253,630,900 - 253,630,900 - -
INVESTMENT
SECURITY
Dec-16

TOTAL LRD USD GBP EUR
GOL Treasury bills - - - - -
CBL Treasury bills - - - - -
Government bond 208,691,346 - 208,691,346 - -
Total 208,691, - 208,691,346 - -

Currency Risk Exposure relating to on balance sheet asset® n:t 6 d
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Savings deposits

Term deposits

6,433,054,95¢

16,147,079

2,099,289,404

4,333,765,551

16,147,079

I ndependent Auditors®é& Report and Finan BAKER TILLY
For the year ended Decembér 31, 201 LIBERIA
DEPOSITS
FROM
CUSTOMERS
Dec-17
TOTAL LRD USD GBP EUR
Current deposits 5,717,675,22¢ 951,773,886 4,765,01,340 - -
Savings deposits 8,050,217,68¢ 2,099,289,40: 5,950,928,28¢ - -
Term deposits 22,565,918 - 22,565,918 - -
Total 13,790,458,832z 3,051,063,28¢ 10,739,395,54: - -
DEPOSITS
FROM
CUSTOMERS
Dec-16
TOTAL LRD uSsD GBP EUR
Current deposits 4,975,176,397 960,081,151 4,015,095,24¢ - -

Total

11,424,378,43.

3,059,370,555

8,365,007,876
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Net/Gross nominal (undiscounted) maturities of financial assets and liilities
Disclosures to the Financial Statements
December2017
Carrying 1 month Less than 3to6 6to 12 1to5 More than
In LRD amount 3 months months months years 5 years
Financial assets
Cash and cash equivalents 1,956,788,07( 1,956,788,07( - - - -
Loans and advances to customers 11,014,535,16: 3,807,850,53C  2,590,467,56z 782,682,780 3,369,394,19¢ 464,140,094
Investment Securities:
0 Available for sale 140,583,342 - 140,583,342 - - -
8 Other Investments 1,533,936,67¢ - - - 1,533,936,67¢ -
0 Held to maturity - - - - - -
Other Assets 5,640,202,04¢ 5,640,202,64 - - - -
20,286,045,29¢ 11,404,840,64¢ 2,731,050,90t 782,682,780 4,903,330,875 464,140,094
Financial liabilities
Deposits from customers 13,790,458,83: 6,757,311,62¢  6,619,434,24¢ 413,712,957 - -
Due to central bank & EBID 1,818,055,77¢ - - - - 1,818,055,77¢
Other Liabilities 4,603,496,567 4,603,496,567 - - - -
20,212,011,173 11,360,808,19: 6,619,434,24¢ 413,712,957 - 1,818,055,77¢

Gap (asset liabilities)

74,034,126

44,032,452

(3,888,383,344)

368,969,823 4,903,330,875 (1,353,9158)

Cumulative liquidity gap

74,034,126

44,032,452

(3,888,383,344)

368,969,823 4,903,330,875 (1,353,915,680
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December-2016
1 month Less
Carrying than 3t06 6to 12 1to5 More than
In LRD amount 3 months months months years 5 years
Financial assets
Cash and cash equivalents 2,009,539,79¢ 2,009,539,79¢ - - - -
Loans and advances to customers 8,650,363,252 3,815,091,87¢ 162,574,806 819,989,269 3,386,245,861 466,461,441
Investment Securities:
o Available for sale 84,793,796 - 84,793,796 - - -
o Other Investments 1,523,415,87¢ - - - 1,523,415,87¢ -
8 Held to maturity - - - - - -
Other Assets 3,576,792,627 3,576,792,627 - - - -
15,844,905,34: 9,401,424,30C 247,368,602 819,989,269 4,909,661,737 466,461,441
Financial liabilities
Deposits from customers 11,424,378,43: 5,600,106,83¢ 5,487,860,641 336,410,954 - -
Due to central bank 1,241,573,44¢ - - - - 1,241,53,449
Other Liabilities 2,857,675,63¢ 2,857,675,63¢ - - - -
15,523,627,51¢ 8,457,782,472 5,487,860,641 336,410,954 - 1,241,573,44¢
Gap (asset liabilities) 321,277,833 943,641,828 (5,240,492,039) 483,578,315 4,909,661,737 (775,112,008)
Cumulative liquidity gap 321,277,833 943,641,828 (5,24,492,039) 483,578,315 4,909,661,737 (775,112,008)
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Credit risk exposures relating to ofbalance sheet assets are as
follows

Maximum exposure

In Liberian Dollars Dec-2017 Dec-2016
Classification

Cash and cash equivalents:

- Balances held with other banks 773,485,588 539,039,677
- Unrestricted balances with Central bai 857,104,704 930,104,951
- Balances with foreign banks 326,194,78¢% 540,395,17C
Investment securities:

- GOL Treasury bills - -

- CBL Treasury bills - -

- Government Bond 253,63®00 208,691,34¢
Investment in Treasury Bond 1,177,081,79% 1,177,081,79%
- Equity Investment 24,986,486 24,986,486
Loans and advances to customers:

- Loans to individuals 3,088,712,05( 5,831,730,07¢
- Loans to nosindividuals 7,925,823,11: 2,818,633,17
Other assets2 3,606,059,02: 3,576,792,62:

Total

16,871,013,15

15,647,455,30¢

Loans exposure to total exposure
Other exposure to total exposure

55%
45%

55%
45%

2Balances included in Other Assets above are those subject to credit risks. Items not subject 1
risk, which 'include Stock/Stationery and Prepaid benefit on employbasddaeen excluded.

The table above shows a waate scenario of credit risk exposure to the Bank as at 31 Deceml
2017 and 31 December 2016 without taking account of any collateral held or other credit enhe

attached.

Loans and advances to
customers is analyzed below:

In Liberian Dollars Dec-2017 Dec-2016
Loans to individuals:

Overdraft 923,836,15¢E 891,516,37¢€
Loans 2,164,875,89¢ 1,888,877,71¢

3,088,712,05(

2,78,394,097

Loans to nosandividuals:

Overdraft

Loans

2,243,680,27¢

5,682,142,83¢

1,696,667,40¢

4,130,253,18

7,925,823,11¢

5,826,920,592

Page |71



o V4
Lib Bank for Devel t&|l t t (LBDI
iberian Bank for Developmen nvestment ( ) %AKER TILLY

Il ndependent Auditorsd Report and Finan
For the year ended Decembér 31, 201 LIBERIA

Credit risk exposures relating to ofbalance sheet items are as follows:
Maximum exposure

In Liberian Dollars Dec-2017 Dec-2016

Financial guarantee 66,947,51¢ 65,234,690

Other contingents 304,973,53C 365,925,00C
371,921,04¢ 431,159,69(C

Geographical Sector

Concentation of risks of financial assets with credit risk exposure

The following table breaks down the bankds cred
held or other credit support), as categorized by geographical region as at the atpoFRimgtlis
table, the bank has allocated exposures to.region

Credit risk exposure relating to OrBalance Sheet

Dec-17

In Liberian Dollars Liberia Rest of Africa
Classification

Cash and cash equivalents:

- Balances held with otheanks 773,485,58: -
- Unrestricted balances with Central banks 857,107,704 -
- Balances with foreign banks 326,194,78< -

Investment securities:
- GOL Treasury bills - -
- CBL Treasury bills - -

- Government Bond 253,630,90C -
Loans and advances to customers:

- Loans to individuals 3,088,712,05 -
- Loans to nosindividuals 7,925,823,11: -
Other &sets 3,606,059,02" -
Total 16,831,013,15 -

Balances included in Other Assets above are those subject to credit risks. Iltems not subject to credit
risk, which 'include Stock/Stationery and prepaid benefit on employees loan have been excluded.
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Loans and advances to customers is analyzed below
Dec-17
In Liberian Dollars Liberia Rest of Africa
Loans to individuals:
Overdraft 923,836,15! -
Loans 2,164,875,89¢ -
3,088,712,05( -
Loans to nosindividuals:
Overdraft 2,28,680,27¢ -
Loans 5682,142,83¢ -
7,925,823,11: -
Credit risk exposure relating to On
Balance Sheet
Dec-16
In Liberian Dollars Liberia Rest of Africa

Classification
Cash and cash equivalents:

- Balances held with othenka 539,039,677 -
- Unrestricted balances with Central banl 930,104,951 -
- Balances with foreign banks 540,395,17C -

Investment securities:
- CBL Treasury bills - -

- Government Bond 208,691,34¢ -
Loans and advances to customers:

- Loans to individuals 5,831,730,07 -
- Loans to nosindividuals 2,818,633,17¢ -
Other assets 3,576,792,62 -
Total 14,445,387,02: -

2Balances included in Other Assets above are those subject to credit risks. ltems not subject t

ri sk, which include Stock/ Stationery and F
Loans and advances to customers @nalyzed

below:

Dec-16

In Liberian Dollars Liberia Rest of Africa
Loans to individuals:

Overdraft 820,722,191 -
Loans 1,997,910,98: -

2,818,633,17+ -

Loans to nosindividuals:

Overdraft 1,869,908,61¢ -

Loans 3,961,821,46: -
5,831,730,07¢ -
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THE LIBERIAN BANK FOR DEVELOPMENT & INVESTMENT

SUPPLEMENTARY DATA

For the year ended December 31, 201

Introductory Comments

The financiabtatements for the year ended Decembe2@T, are presented on pageds 86 in
accordance with the requirements of law and International Financial Reporting Standard (IFRS).

Presented on a supplementary basis in this s@uaiges6896) are the corsponding summary
financial statements denominated in equivalent United States dollars. This presentation is intended for

the benefit of readers who may not be adequately familiar with the Liberian dollar.
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Statement & Profit or Loss and Other Comprehensive Income
In United States Dollars Note 31Dec-20T7 31Dec-2056
Interest income 9 6,500,031 6,697,641
Interest expense 10 1,669,479 1,558,337
Net interest income 4,830,552 5,139,304
Loan impairment charges 326,561 501,875
Net interest income after loan impairment charges 4,503,991 4,785,900
Fee and commission income 11 4,507,887 4,464,975
Fee and commission expense - -
Net interest and commission on Loans & Advances 9,011,878 10,260,835
Other operating income 12 3,315,972 1,982,110
Total income forthe period 12,327,850 11,084,51¢<
Personnel expenses 13 4,811,989 4,165,841
General and administrative expenses 14 4,998,325 4,364,168
Operating lease expenses 379,229 317,553
Other operating expenses 15 1143,854 545,629
Total operating expenditure for the period 11,333,397 9,393,191
Profit for the period 994,453 1,691,322
Profit attributable to:
Equity holders of the entity
Profit for the riod from continuing operation 994,453 1,691,322
Earnings per share for the profit/loss from
continuing operations attributable to the equity
holders of the bank during the period (expressed in
Liberian dollars per share):
- Basic 1.47 2.49
- Diluted 1.47 2.49

The notes on pagé4 to 96are integral parts of these financial statements
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Statement of Financial Position

Not tDec-20T7 tDec-2
In United States Dollars ote  3kDec-20 3tDec-20B
Assets
Cash and cash equivalents 16 15,631,795 19,605,266
Investments 17 13,677,940 15,987,955
Loans and Advances to Customers 18 87,490,045 84,393,788
Other assets 19 50,392,348 41,129,
Investment property 20 9,000,000 9,000,000
Intangible assets 21 1,292,073 581,888
Property and equipment 22 11,200,810 11,744,106
Total assets 188,685,011 182,442,&1
Liabilities
Deposits from Customers 23 110165,033 111,457,351
Due to Central Bank & EBID 24 14,523,564 14,958,716
Other liabilities 25 36,756,947 27879,762
Total liabilities 161,445,544 154,295,82¢
Equity
Share capital 26 7,724,240 7,724,240
Share Praium 26 2,442,754 2,442,754
Statutory Reserves 27a 4,582,151 4,333,541
Revaluation Surplus 27b 6,111,287 6,111,287
Treasury stock (63,309) (63,309)
Retained earnings / (Accumulated losses) 6,442,344 7,598,476
Total equity attributable to the owners of the bank 27,239,467 28,146,989
Total liabilities and equity 188,685,01! 182,442,81¢
7/ ™ |
= ity e ATy Sl e 2012
lohn B.S. Davies 111 Dr. James S.P. Coopgt

President/Chief Executive Officer Director

The notes on pag&d to 9@re integral parts of these financial statements
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Statement of Cash Flows
In United States Dollars 31Dec-20T7 31Dec-2056
Cash flows from operating activities
Profit for the period 994,453 1,691,322
Adjustments for:
Depreciation and amortization 805,609 936,674
Translation dierences (2,271,974) 79,437
(471,92 2,707,433
Changes in:
Loans and advances to customers (3,096,258) (7,417,525)
Other assets (9,262,532) 1,085,120
Deposits from customers (1,292,316) (6,641,746)
Other liabilities 8,877,185 8,581,324
Net cash from/(used in) operating activities (5,245,838 (1,685,394
Cads flows from investing activities
Purchase of property & equipment and Intangible 543,296 (1,606,549)
Investments 2,310,016 557,304
Adjustments (retained earning & fixed assets) (467,879) (819,293)
Net cash from/(used in) investing activities 2,385,431 (1,868,538
Cash flows from financing activities
Due to Central Bank & EBID (435,152) (337,161)
Dividend payable (677,917) (679,000)
Net cash from/(used in) financing activities (1,113,069 (1,016,161
Net (decrease) / increase in cash and cash
equivalents (3,973,471) (4,570,09)
Cash and cash equivalent at beginning of period 19,605,266 24,175,359
Cash and cash equivalent at end of period 15,631,795 19,605,266

The notes on pagé4 to 96are integral parts of these financia¢stants
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Statement of changes in equity

Credit
Share Share Revaluation Risk Statutory  Treasury  Retained

capital Premium reserves Reserves reserves stock earnings Total
In United States Dollars
Balance at 1 January @01 7,724,240 2,442,754 7,710,542 4,723,521 3,910,710 (63,309) 1,079,156 27,527,644
Shares issued: Class B Common stock $10 par value - - - - - - - -
Share premium (Paith Capital in excess of par) - - - - - - - -
Reclassification Based on CBL
Guideline/RSD/0864/2016 - - - (4,723,521) - - 4,723,521 -
Revaluation reserves on investment properties - - (1,599,255) - - - - (1,599,255)
Other adjustment (Prior year items) - - - - (793,693) (793,693)
Total comprehensive income for the period:
Profit for the period - - - - 422,831 - 1,268,492 1,691,323
Dividend payable - - - - - - (679,000) (679,000)
Other comprehensive income, net of tax - - 2,000,000 - - - - 2,000,000
Foreign curnecy translation difference (USD, EURO &
GBP)
Total Equity & Reserves at December 31, 2016 7,724,240 2,442,754 8,111,287 - 4,333,541 (63,309) 7,598,476 28,146,989

The notes on pagédto 96are inteaal parts of these financial statements
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Statement of changes in equity

Credit
Share Share Revaluation Risk Statutory ~ Treasury Retained
capital Premium reserves Reserves reserves stock earnings Total

In United States Dollars
Balance at 1 January 2017 7,724,240 2,442,754 8,111,287 - 4,333,541 (63,309) 7,598,476 28,146,989
Shares issued: Class B Common stock $10 par value - - - - - - - -
Share premium (Paith Capital in excess of par) - - - - - - - -
Reclassification Based on CBL
Guideline/RSD/0864/2016 - - - - - - - -
Revaluation reserves on investment properties - - - - - - - -
Transfer to retained earnings - - - - - - - -
Other adjustment (Prior year items) - - - - - - (1,224,058) (1,224,058)
Total comprehensive income for the period:
Profit for the period - - - - 248,610 - 745,843 994,453
Dividend payable - - - - - - (677,917) (677,917)
Other comprehensive income, net of tax - - - - - - - -
Foreign currency translation difference (USD, EURO .
GBP) - - - - - - -
Total Equity & Reserves at December 31, 2016 7,724,240 2,442,754 6,111,287 - 4,582,151 (63,309) 6,442,344 27,239,466

The notes on pagé4 to 96are intepl parts of these financial statements
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Interest income
3:Dec-20Y7 31-Dec206
In United States Dollars
Loans and advances to customers 6,500,031 6,697,641
Cash and Cash equivalent - -
6,500,031 6,697,641
Geographical location
Interest income earned in Liberia 6,500,031 6,697,641
Interest income earned outside Liberia -
6,500,031 6,697,641
Interest expense
In United States Dollars 3:Dec-20T7 3kDec-2056
Savings account individuals 800,655 774,891
Savings account joint in trust for 64 99
Savings account in trust for 18,505 14,362
Savings account not for profit 115,338 111,214
Savings account joint 95,881 97,030
Savings account staff 9,594 8,671
Savings account non resident 18,678 15,843
Savings account clubs & associations 51,294 46,552
Savings direct deposit 26,277 20,400
Interest on time deposit 182,527 454,411
Short term borrowing 350,664 14,864
1,669,479 1,558,337
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11 Fee ard commission income
3%tDec-20T 3%tDec-2056
In United States Dollars
Fees and commissions on loan and advances 398,215 627,507
Commission on MoneyGram operations 499,90 430,212
Commission on Western Union operations 162,425 227,677
Commission on transfers and drafts 1,274,244 1,038,468
Service charges on customer deposits 874,779 1,176,160
Commission on guarantees and bonds 40,873 33,238
Other commission and fees 1,257,442 931,713
4,507,887 4,464,975
12 Other operating income
3:Dec-207 31Dec-2056
In United States Dollars
Income on GOL/Bond 2,084,233 1,028,714
Income on call deposits 1,529 946
Other 721,400 486,313
Rental income 508,810 466,137
3,315,972 1,982,110
13 Personnel expense
3:Dec-207 31Dec-2056
In United States Dollars
Wages and sdks 38,991 42,402
Housing and transportation allowance 2,463,272 2,213,045
Contributions to defined contribution plans 1,062,921 858,739
Other staff cost 1,246,805 1,051,655
4,811,989 4,165,814
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14 General and administrative expenses

31Dec-207 31Dec-206
In United States Dollars
Other premises and equipment costs 1,125,085 920,522
Directors' emoluments 312,050 219,126
Professional services 962,936 756,487
Office expenses 574,383 634,303
Foreign travel 194,215 110,743
Local travel & transportation 296,135 105,656
Licenses and fees 474,905 506,987
Operational expensigwestment property 308 1,057
Bank service and note import charges 68,004 21,860
Advertising and business promotion 184,695 150,753
Amortization éintangibles 216,125 198,588
Depreciation of Property, Plant and
Equipment 589,484 738,086

4,998,325 4,364,168
15 Other operating expenses

31Dec-207 31Dec-206
In United States Dollars
Scholarships and donations 58,126 208,599
Sundry expenses 432,020 389,790
Treasury Operation 593,626 -
Fineby CBL 76,921 -
Other/Cash short and over (16,839) (52,760)

1,143,854 545,629

Fine of US$76,921 levied by CBL for violation of Reserve
Requirement Regulation CBL/RSD/003/2016.
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16 Cashand cash equivalents
3:Dec-20Y7 3:Dec-20b
In United States Dollars
Cash and balances with banks 6,178,987 5,258,924
Unrestricted balances with banks 9,452,808 14,346,342
15,631,79¢ 19,605,266
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17. Investment in securitie® others

17.1. Availabldor-sale

The bankacquird sharesin Liberia Cement Corporation 20156 of US 1,068,09Gor resale to

Liberians. Thednk designated the shares as avditatdale investment securities as at Dec. 34, 201

However, the bank still maintains the shares bought in 2014/2015.

17.2Treasurybills

During the year, the bank acquired treasungdfrom both the government bfberia and Central

Bank.
Investment in securities & others
3kDec-207 3kDec-20b
In United States Dollars
Investment securities
Held to- maturity
GOL - -
CBL - -
Other investments
Available for sale 1,322,654 1,068,090
Investment in Treasury Bond 9,403,114 11,483,725
Equity investment 301,042 301,042
Investment in Bond&OL 2,026,130 2,036,013
Investment in syndicated loan 625,000 1,099,085
13,677,940 15,987,955
18 Loans and Advances to Customers
31Dec-2017
In United States Gross Portfolio Total Carrying
Dollars amount Impairment Impairment amount
Loans to noandividuals 65,870,660 (3,054,781) (3,054,781) 62,815,879
Loans to individuals 24,674,166 - - 24,674,166
90,544,826 (3,054,781) (3,054,781) 87,490,045
31Dec-2016
In United States Gross Portfolio Total Carrying
Dollars amount Impairment Impairment amount
Loans to nofindividuals 59,651,831 (2,756,904) (2,756,904) 56,894,927
Loans to individuals 27,498,861 - 27,498,861
87,150,692 (2,756,904) (2,756,904) 84,393,788
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Performance Profile of Loans and Advances per CBL Prudential Guidelines Is As Followrs (
United States Dollars):

% %

Total Total Provision % Total
Status Count Count Value Value Amount Prov.
10 CURRENT 2,819 15.9% 67,499,645 78.90% 674,996 5.04%
20 OLEM 94 0.5% 175,851 20.60% 8,793 0.07%
Total Performing 2913 16.5% 67,675,495 79.11% 683,789 5.11%
3- SUBSTANDARD 1,021 5.8% 5,645,065 6.60% 1,129,013 8.43%
4 - DOUBTFUL 3,454 19.5% 1,305,188 1.53% 652,594 487%
50 LOSS 10,303 58.2% 10,925,236 12.77% 10,925,236 81.59%
Total NPL 14,778 83.5% 17,875,489 20.89% 12,106,843 94.89%
Total Performing &
NPL 17,691 100% 85,550,984 100% 13,390,632 100%

Sensitivity Analysis on recognition of provision based on CBL Guideline€oncerning
Accounting and Financial Reporting for Banks.

Provision Net Provision
CBL Provision provision Impact on impact on Impact on
Year Guidelines IFRS impact Capital P&L Profit
2017 13,390,632 3,193,962 10,196,670 27,917,383 23,272,46(Q0  (9,202,217)
2016 17,598,497 2,756,904 14,841,593 28,146,989 2,544,772 (13,150,271]
Net (4,207,865) 437,058 4,664,923 (229,609) 20,727,688 (3,948,051
N/S SECTORIAL CLASSIFICATION OF LOANS & ADVANCES:
SECTOR 3tDec-17 31Dec-16
1 AGRICULTURE uUsD uUsD
Fishery 51,679 48,575
Rubber 1,565,11 1,471,130
Others 403,416 379,192
2,020,206 1,898,897
2 CONSTRUCTION
Commercial mortgage 7,960,580 7,482,565
Home mortgage 1,889,962 1,776,475
Road construction 19,589,901 19,132,596
Other construction 394,584 370,890
29,835,027 28,762,526
3 COMMUNICATION 1,640,523 1514,343
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3:Dec-17 3xDec-16
4 uUsD usD
Hotels 605,192 568,852
Bar & restaurant 716,978 673,925
Other services 3,610,470 3,393,669
4,932,640 4,636,446
5 EXTRACTIVE
Iron ore - -
Diamond - -
Gold - -
Quarrying - -
Forestry 983,643 924,578
983,643 924,578
6 OTHERS
Manufacturing 1,040,617 3,958,438
Trade 31,365,267 29,481,856
Pesonal 5,502,702 5,172,277
Government of Liberia 4,001 3,761
Central bank - -
Public corporation 57,141 53,710
General 10,108,278 9,501,299
48,078,005 48,171,341
TOTAL SUMMARY
LOANS 87,490,045 84,393,788
19 Other current assets
3:Dec-2017 31-Dec2016
In United States Dollars
Accounts receivable 33,058,505 14,898,689
Prepayments 1,515,347 1,515,883
Deferred expensesdvances & software 1,084,099 1,484,773
Restricted deposits with Central bank 13,600,088 22,056,219
Stock/Stationery 1,134,309 1,174,251
50,392,348 41,129,815

20. Investment properties

Investment Properties have been measured at fair value in the statement of financial position and are
categorized by levels according to the inputs used in the market measurement.
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Investment properties
significant
other Significant
Current valued
Dec. 17 prices observable  unobservable
for identical
properties inputs I nputs
In United States Dollars Level 1 Level 2 Level3
uUsD uUsbD UsD UsD
Investment Properties
E.E. Sleeby
Property/Buildigs 9,000,000 9,000,000 - 9,000,000
Total 9,000,000 9,000,000 - 9,000,000

Fair value for Investment grerties are calculated usingrthaluation methgdvhich results in the
measurement being classified as level 1 in the fair view vatakyhier

Stabilized NOI:

Revenue less any property operating expenses adjusted for item such as any ledsegiproosts
vacancy rate, ngrecoverable capital expenditures, management fees;lsteaights and other neon
recurring costs.

Investment properties are valued on a highest and best use basis. For the Bank's investment properties,
the current use @nsidered the highest and best use.

21 Intangible assets

3%tDec-20T 31-Dec20%6
In United States Dollars
Cost:
Balance at beginning of the ye 1,872,053 1,695,057
Addition 909,506 52,687
Exchange rate effect 242,342 124,309
3,023,901 1,872,053
Accumulated amortization:
Balance at beginning of the ye 1,290,165 941,014
Amortization for the year 216,125 198,588
Exchange rate effect 225,538 150,563
1,731,828 1,290,165
Carrying amounts 1,292,073 581,888
22 Net Book Value of Property Plant & Equipment (see page 8485 11,200,810
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23 Deposits from customers
3tDec-207 3tDec-2056
In United States Dollars
Term deposits 180,268 157,532
Current deposits 45,675,629 48,538,306
Savings deposits 64,309,136 62,761,513
110,165,03: 111,457,35:

24.During theyear undereview, the Bank received US$1,500,000 at 2% for period of two years from
CBL to support ongoing Micro Small and Medium Enterprise Rural FinanEbdPodRecovery

Project. Interest sthéle made on quarterly basis.

In November 2012, the CBL again provided additional US$ 7 million and L$ 217.5 million at 3% for the
purpose of intermediation through ldagn affordable mortgage loans to Liberian Nationals, also at a

total servicing coginterest, fees and other charges) not exceeding eight percent (8%) per annum. The
placement is for ten (10) years repayable in full on November 14, 2022. Interest payment shall be made
on a quarterly basis and at maturity; the remaining interest pipsisirall be made via debit to the
relevant LBDI account at the CBL.

Due to Central Bank & EBID

24a Due to Central Bank

31Dec-20T 31Dec-2056
In United States Dollars
Long term debCBL Mortgage loan 10,237,498 9,620,482
Accrued interest payable genera 94 94
Long term debEBL rubber stimulus fund 2,136,507 2,663,253
Small business developmfends 7,989 12,048
12,382,088 12,295,877
24b Due to EBID
Long term debECOWAS banks for Investment & Developmel 2,141,476 2,662,839
14,523,564 14,958,71¢€
25 Other Liabilities
3kDec-207 3kDec-20B
In United States Dollars
Accounts payable 21,614,761 24,208,758
Short term borrowings 11,435,700 -
Dividend payable 854,155 1,602,971
Provisiorfor employee benefit: 1,806,033 1,590,086
Accrued interest on customer deposits 703,356 375,938
Unearned fees and commissit 329,638 83,671
Current income tax liabilities 13,304 18,338
36,756,947 27879,762
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26 Paid-in - Capital
31Dec-20T 31Dec-20b6

Share Capital
Class A Common stock $10 par value
(Authorized 1,000,000 share
Issued and outstandiagbeginning of yedP2,653hares 4,226,533 4,226,533
Issued during the year - -
Issued and outstanding at end of ¥23r653
shares 4,226,533 4,226,533
Class B Common stock $10 par value
(Authorized 1,000,000 shares
Issued and outstanding at beginning of34Ri7 7 khares 3,497,707 3,497,707
Issued during the year - -
Issuedand outstanding at end of yeaB49,77Ehares 3,497,707 3,497,707
Total Share Capital 7,724,240 7,724,240
Paid- in Capital in excess of
par 2,442,754 2,442,754
Total Paid- in Capital 10,166,994 10,166,994
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22. PROPERTY,PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Descriptions Land & Leasehold Equipment Furniture & Vehicles Misc. Work in Total
Buildings Improveme fixtures Properties progress
nt
Cost: usD usD usD usD usD usD uUsD usD
Balance at January 1, 2016 6,706,419 4,543,101 757,611 975,297 306,249 227,401 15,694,332
2,178,254
Additions during the year 779,225 31,190 1,543 8,512 35 330,378 1,606,549
455,66
Disposal - (9,498) - - - - (9,498)
Adjustments (279,235) 21,269 804,172 76,044 240,197 3,130 (101,309) 764,268
Balance at December 31, 7,206,409 2,655,189 5,368,956 835,198 1,224,006 309,414 456,470 18,055,6b
2016
Balance at January 1, 2017
7,206,409 2,655,189 5,368,965 835,198 1,224,006 309,414 456,470 18,055,651
Additions during the year - 521,645 35,708 200,443 16,048 740,661 1,514,504
Disposals during the year - -
Adjustments - (311,510) (852,633) (144,279) (18,099) (268,161) (96,573) (1,855,255)
Balance at December 31, 7,206,409 2,343,679 5,037,977 726,627 1,242,350 57,301 326,714 16,941,057
2017
Balance at January 1,201 - 3,019,259 327,357 679,698 256,576 - 5,139,164
856,274
Charge for the year - 397,133 56,718 112,225 213 - 738,086
171,797
Disposals during theare - 383,452 11,159 25,601 2,18 - 442,370
20,040
Effect of Exchange rate - (8,075) - - - - (8,075)
Balance at December 31, - 1,048,111 3,791,769 395,234 817,524 258,907 - 6,311,545
206
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Balance at January 1, 2017 - 3,791,769 395,234 817,524 - 6,311,545
1,048,111 258,907
Charge for the year - 54,210 317,553 61,534 154,001 2,186 - 589,484
Effect of Exchange rate
- (268,842) (468,114) (35,537) (166,655) (221,634) - (1,160,782)
Disposals during the year - -
Balance at December 31, - 833,479 3,641,208 421,231 804,870 39,459 - 5,740,247
2017
Net book value:
As at December 31, 2016 7,206,409 1,577,96 439,964 406,482 50,507 456,470 11,744,106
1,607,078
As atDecember 31, 2017 7,206,409 1,510,200 1,396,770 305,395 437,479 17,843 326,714 11,200,810

Page |92



Liberian Bank for Development & Investment (LBDI) &

Il ndependent Auditorsd Report and Finan BAKER TILLY
For the year ended Decembér 31, 201 LIBERIA
27 Revduation Reserve
3tDec-207 3tDec-2056
In United States Dollars
6,111,287 6,111,287

27aStatutory Reserve

Section 1001 of the bank&s <charter requires
available for dividends, the bank shall set aside in edotayssecial reserve fund a sum equal to

not | ess than 25% of the net profit of the ba
year, until the aggregate of that amounts so set aside equals the amount of the loans to the bank
then outstandon In addition to amounts set aside as special reserve, the Directors shall set aside
from any profits otherwise available for the payments of dividends such other reserves as they
deem prudent . o

27bRevaluation Surplus
3%Dec. 62017 3tDec.6 2016

6,111,287 6,111,287

The bank exercised an option to fair value all buildings it owned at the date of transition to market
value from the portfolio of fixed assets on its books including investment properties. The impact
of the fair valugon was an increased in the value of the assets. The bank has reclassified the
surplus to a Revaluati®urplusaccount.The revaluation surplus is now 8%%1,2872016:
US%,111,287 This was danin conformity with IA80,

28 Credit Risk Reserve

The crediriskreserve warehouses the difference between the impairment on loans and advances
determined using the Central Bank of Liberia prudential guidelines, compared with the incurred
loss model used in determining the impairment loss under IFRSs.

31Dec-20T 31:Dec-20b
Movement in Credit Risk Reserve
Opening balance - 4,723,521
Transfer to retained earnings - (4,723,521)

Balance at year end - -

Prior to 2016the differencavastransferred to credit riskgerve and the reverse case is also a direct
application to income statemént2016, the balance in the Credit Risk Reserve was moved to retained
earning based on new CBL prudential guideline CBL/RSD/0864/2016 effective July 28 2016.

Thereafter, the s guideline requires the Bank not to make adjustment in it book for such difference

but rather to show the impact on capital and profit if CBL impairment model was aborted using
sensitivity analysis as done in page 58 of this financial statements.
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29 Contingencies

29.1 Claims and Litigation

The bak has contingent liabilitiesrespect of legal claim arising in the ordinary course of business as

at December 31, 2D1lt is not anticipated that any material liability will arise from the eonting
liabilities.

29.2 Contingent Liabilities and Commitments

In common with other banks, the bank conducts business involving acceptances, performance bonds
and indemnities. The majority of these facilities are offset by corresponding oblighitidnsadies.
Contingent liabties and commitments comprise acceptances, guaranties and letters of credit.

29.3 Commitments for capital expenditure

The bank had no commitments for capital expenditure as at Decembét (2D 20Nil)

30 Rdéated Parties

Parties are considered to be related if one party has the ability to control the other party or exercise
influence over the other party in making financial and operational decisions, or one other party controls
both.

31.Subsequent eventsaview

Events subsequent to the balance sheet date are reflected only to the extent that they a¥® material.
such eventsame to our attenticas at the date the financial statements were signed.

Transactions with Executive Directors and Key ManagemerPersonnel

Key management personnel are defined as those persons having authority and responsibility for
planning, directing and controlling the activities of LBDI (directly or indirectly) and comprise the
Director and senior management of the bankeTuere no material transactions with companies in

which Directors or other members of key management personnel (or any connected persons) are related

Remunerations of Executive Directors and Other Key Management Personnel are as follows:

3kDec-2017 3E:Dec-2016

In United States Dollars
Salaries and other short term benefits 377,401 327,520
Contributions to defined contribution plans 5,656 5,672
383,057 333,192
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DISCLOSURES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Currency Risk Exposure relating to on balance sheet assets are as

follows:

Dec-17

In United States

Dollars

Classification TOTAL LRD usb GBP EUR

Cash and cash equivalent 15,631,795 4,077,333 11,538,573 5,364 10,525

Financial assets held for

trading - - - - -

Investment securities: - - - - -

- Available for sale 1,322,654 - 1,322,654 - -

- Held to maturity - - - - -

Loans and Advances to

Customers 87,490,045 6,540,199 80,949,846 - -

Property, plant and

equipment 11,200,810 326,217 10,874,593 - -

Intangible assets 1,292,073 - 1,292,073 - -

Current income tax assets - - - - -

Other assets 50,392,348 15,117,704 35,274,644 - -
167,329,725 26,061,453 141,252,383 5,364 10,525

Deposits from banks - - - - -

Deposits from customers 110,165,033 32,068,698 78,096,335 - -

Due to central bank &

EBID 14,523,564 3,454,121 11,069,443 - -

Due to Intercompany - - - - -

Current income tax

liabilities - - - - -

Deferred tax liabilities - - - - -

Other liabilities 36,756,947 9,019,757 27,737,190 - -
161,445,544 44,542,576 116,902,968 - -
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Currency Risk Exposure relating to on balance sheet assets are as follows:

Dec-16

In United States

Dollars

Classification TOTAL LRD UsD GBP EUR

Cash and cash equivalen 19,605,266 4,702,803 13,945,457 1,933 955,073

Financial assets held for

trading - - - - -

Investment securities: - - - - -

- Available for sale 1,068,090 - 1,068,090 - -

- Held to maturity - - - - -

Loans and Advances to

Customers 84,393,788 7,779,242 76,614,546 - -

Property, plant and

equipment 11,744,106 156,638 11,587,468 - -

Intangible assets 581,888 - 581,888 - -

Curren income tax assets - - - - -

Other assets 41,129,815 16,946,717 24,183,098 - -
158,522,952 29,585,400 127,980,547 1,933 995,073

Deposits from banks - - - - -

Deposits from customers 111,457,351 29,879,060 81,578,291 - -

Due to central bank 14,958,716 5,209,480 9,749,236 - -

Due to Intercompany - - - - -

Current income tax

liabilities - - - - -

Deferred ta liabilities - - - - -

Other liabilities 27879,762 1,019,346 26,860,416 - -
154,295,829 36,107,886 118,187,94: - -
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Currency Risk Exposure relating to on balance sheet asset® n:t 6 d

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

Dec-17

TOTAL LRD UsD GBP EUR
Cash and balances with
banks 6,178,987 1,536,321 4,642,539 43 84
Unrestrictedalances with
Central bank 6,847,002 1,471,680 5,375,322 - -
Balances with foreign 2,605,806 - 2,593,817 4,596 7,393
Total 15,631,975 3,008,001 12,611,678 4,639 7,477

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

Dec-16
TOTAL LRD usD GBP EUR

Cash and balances with
banks 5,258,924 1,256,815 3,541,400 809 459,900
Unrestricted balances with
Central bank 9,074,194 3,445,988 5,628,206 - -
Money market placements 5,272,148 - 4,775,851 1,124 495,13
Total 19,605,266 4,702,803 13,945,457 1,933 955,073
INVESTMENT SECURITY
Dec-17

TOTAL LRD usD GBP EUR
CBL Treasury
bills - - - - -
Government
bond 2,026,130 - 2,026,130 - -
Total 2,026,129 - 2,026,130 - -
INVESTMENT SECURITY
Dec-16

TOTAL LRD usD GBP EUR
CBL Treasury
bills - - - - -
Government
bond 2,036,013 - 2,036,013 - -
Total 2,036,013 - 2,036,013 - -
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Currency Risk Exposure relating to on balancsheet assetg o n:t 6 d
DEPOSITS FROM CUSTOMERS
Dec-17

TOTAL LRD USD GBP EUR
Current
deposits 45,675,629 7,603,243 38,072,386 - -
Savngs
deposits 64,309,136 16,770,166 47,538,970 - -
Term
deposits 180,268 - 180,268 - -
Total 110,165,03¢ 24,373,409 85,791,624 - -
DEPOSITS FROM CUSTOMERS
Dec-16

TOTAL LRD USsD GBP EUR
Current
deposits 48,538,306 9,366,645 39,171,661 - -
Savings
deposits 62,761,511 20,480,872 42,280,639 - -
Term deposits 157,532 - 157,532 - -
Total 111,4574® 29,847,517 81,609,833 - -

Net/Gross nominal (undiscounted) maturities of financial assets and liabilities
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Disclosures to the Financial Steements
December2017
1 month
Carrying Less than 3to6 61to 12 1to5 More than
In United States
Dollars amount 3 months months months years 5 years
Financial assets
Cash and cash equivalen 15,631,795 15,631,795 - - - -
Loans and advances to
customers 87,490,045 30,419,000 20,194,410 6,252,459 26,916,394 3,707,782
Investment Securities:
0 Available for sale 1,322,654 - 1,322,654 - - -
0 Other Investments 12,355,285 - - - 12,355,285 -
0 Held to maturity - - - - - -
Other Assets 50,392,348 50,392,348 - - - -
167,192,127 96,443,143 21,517,064 6,252,459 39,271,89 3,707,782
Financial liabilities
Deposits from customers 110,165,033 53,980,760 52,879,328 3,304,945 - -
Due to central bank
EBID 14,523,564 - - - - 14,523,564
Other Liabilities 36,756,941 36,756,947 - - - -
161,445,544 90,737,707 52,879,328 3,304,945 - 14,523,564
Gap (asset liabilities) 5,746,583 5,705,437 (31,362,264) 2,947,514 39,271,679 (10,815,782)
Cumulative liquidity
gap 5,746,583 5,705,437 (31,%2,264) 2,947,514 39,271,679 (10,815,782)

1 Includes balances with no specific contractual maturities
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December2016
1 month
Carrying Less than 3to6 6t0l12 1to5 More than

In United States Dollars amount 3 months months months years 5 years
Financial assets
Cash and cash equivalents 19,605,266 19,605,266 - - - -
Loans and advances to
customers 84,393,788 37,220,408 1,586,096 7,999,895 33,036,545 4,550,844
Investment Securities:
0 Available for sale 1,068,090 - 1,068,090 - - -
0 Other Investments 14,919,865 - - - 14,919,865 -
0 Held to maturity - - - - - -
Other Assets 41,129,815 41,129,883 - - - -

161,116,82: 97,955,489 2,654,186 7,999,895 47,956,410 4,59,844
Financial liabilities
Deposits from customers 111,457,351 54,635,189 53,540,104 3,282,058 - -
Due to central bank 14,958,716 - - - - 14,958,176
Other Liabilities 27879,762 27879,762 - - - -

154,295,829 81156,951 53,540,104 3,282,058 - 14,958,716
Gap (asset liabilities) 6,820,995 15,440,538 (50,885,918) 4,717,837 47,956,410 (10,407,872
Cumulative liquidity gap 6,820,995 15,440,538 (50,885,918) 4,717,837 47,956,410 (10,407,872

1 Includes balances with no specific contractual maturitie
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Credit risk exposures relating to ofbalance sheet assets aras follows
Maximum exposure
In United States Dollars Dec-20T Dec-206
Classification
Cash and cash equivalents:
- Balances held with other banks 6,178,987 5,258,924
- Unrestrictedalances with Central banks 6,847,002 9,074,195
- Money market placements 2,605,806 5,272,148
Investment securities:
- GOL Treasury bills - -
- CBL Treasury bills - -
- Government Bond 2,026,130 2,036,013
Investment in Treasury Bond 9,403,114 11,483,725
- Equitylnvestment 301,042 301,042
Loans and advances to customers:
- Loans to individuals 24,674,166 27,498,860
- Loans to nofindividuals 62,815,87 56,894,927
Other assets 50,392,348 41,129,814
Total 165,244,475 158,949,647
Loans exposure to total exposure 53% 53%
Other exposure to total exposure 47% 47%

Balances included @ther Assets above are those subject to credit risks. ltemsbjeat to credit

risk, which ncl ude Stock/ Stationery and prepaid benefi

The table above shows a waesde scenario of credit risk exposure t@#mk as at 31 December

2017 and 31 December ZWithout taking account of any collateral held or other credit enhancements
attached.
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Loans and advances to customers is analyzed
below:
In United States Dollars Dec-207 Dec-20b
Loansto individuals:
Overdraft 7,380,062 8,697,721
Loans 117,294,104 18,801,140
24,674,166 27,498,861
Loans to nofindividuals:
Overdraft 17,923,633 16,552,853
Loans 44,892,247
40,342,074
62,815,879 56,894,927
Credit risk exposures relating to ofbbalance sheet items are as follows:
Maximum exposure
In United States Dollars Dec -207 Dec -20B
Financial guarantees 534,810 636,435
Other contingents 2,436,280 3,570,000
2,971,090 4,206,435
Geographicd Sector
Concentration of risks of financial assets with credit risk exposure
The following table breaks down the bankds

held or other credit support), as categorized by geographical regitme asparting date. For this

table, the bank has allocated exposures to.region

Credit risk exposure relating to OrBalance

Sheet

Dec-17

In United States Dollars Liberia Rest of Africa
Classification

Cash and cash equivalents:

- Balances held with other banks 6,178,987 -
- Unrestricted balances with Central banks ,6847,002 -
- Money market placements 2,605,806 -
Investment securities:

- GOL Treasury bills - -
- CBL Treasury bills - -
- Government Bond 2,036,010 -
Loans and advances to customers:

- Loans to individuals 24,674,166 -
- Loans to nofindividuals 62,815,879 -
Other assets 34,142,604 -
Total 139,290,571 -

2Balances included in Other Assets above are those subject to credit risks. Items not subject 1
risk, whichinclude Stock/Stationery and Prepaid benefit on employeeavedrebn excluded.
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Audi torsd Report and Fi

I ndependent

nan

For the year ended Decembér 31, 201

Loans and advances to customers is analyzed

below:

Dec-17

In United States Dollars Liberia Rest of Africa

Loans to individuals:

Overdraft 7,380,062 -

Loans 17,294,104 -
24,674,166 -

Loans to nofindividuals:

Overdraft 17,923,633 -

Loans 44,892,246 -
62,815,879 -

Credit risk exposurerelating to On-Balance Sheet

Dec-16

In United States Dollars Liberia Rest of Africa

Classification

Cash and cash equivalents:

- Balances held with other banks 5,258,924 -

- Unrestricted balances withn@al banks 9,074,194 -

- Money market placements 5,272,148 -

Investment securities:

- GOL Treasury bills - -

- CBL Treasurbills - -

- Government Bond 2,036,013 -

Loans and advances to customers:

- Loans to individuals 56,894,927 -

- Loans to nosindividuals 27,498,860 -

Other assets 41,129,816 B

Total 147,164,88: -

2Balances included in Other Assets above are those subject to credit risks. Itejast hotcsedit
risk, which include Stock/Stationery and Prepaid benefit on employees loan have been excluc

Loans and advances to customers is analyzed

below:

Dec-16

In United States Dollars Liberia Rest of Africa

Loans to individuals:

Overdraft 8,697,721 -

Loans 18,801,140 -
27,498,861 -

Loans to nosindividuals:

Overdraft 16,552,853 -

Loans 40,342,074 -
56,894,927 -
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